\ &
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL @

/

% o

Notice of a public meeting of
Planning Committee A
To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair), Ayre,

Hollyer, Kelly, Merrett, Nelson, Steels-Walshaw,
Steward, Waudby and Whitcroft

Date: Thursday, 9 November 2023
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West

Offices (F045)

AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1-2)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the Register
of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].
2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)

To approve and sign the minutes of the last Planning Committee A
meeting held on 5 October 2023.



b)

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday 7
November 2023.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast, including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

York Station, Station Road, York (Pages 11 - 62)
[23/01640/LBC]

Internal and external alterations to front entry portico to include
enclosing area with glazing to create pedestrianised and retail space
with 2no. retail pods, repaving in Yorkshire flagstones, repairs to
brickwork, re-pointing, repair rainwater goods, reinstate pigeon
spikes, removal of external canopy and repair and repaint roof
structure. [Micklegate Ward]

Hempland Cp School, Whitby Avenue, York, (Pages 63 - 120)
YO31 1ET [23/01514/FULM]

Erection of two storey school building with associated parking, play
space and landscaping, and demolition of existing school buildings.
[Heworth Without Ward]


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

5. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:
Jane Meller

Contact details:
e Telephone: (01904) 555209
e Email: jane.meller@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMIESIRHEEREISS (cantonese)
g2 ©T AR e o ¥ (TS SN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

. (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G T e (Ura)
T (01904) 551550



mailto:jane.meller@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



(1)

Page 1

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda ltem 1

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 2

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 3 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 5 October 2023

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-

Chair) Ayre, Melly (Substitute for Clir Kelly),
Merrett, Nelson, Steels-Walshaw, Steward,
Waudby, Whitcroft and Fenton (Substitute for

CllIr Hollyer)
Apologies Councillors Hollyer and Kelly
Officers Present Becky Eades, Head of Planning and

Development

Victoria Bell, Development Management
Officer

Erik Matthews, Development Management
Officer

Helene Vergereau, Highways Officer

lan Stokes, Highways Officer

Sandra Branigan, Senior Solicitor

57. Declarations of Interest (4.36 pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on
the Register of Interests.

In respect to item 4c (BHE Self Storage, Strensall), Clir Fisher noted that
he had expressed an opinion at a Strensall Parish Council meeting and
could therefore be considered pre-determined. He subsequently withdrew
from the meeting prior to the start of item 4c and took no further part in the
meeting or decisions thereon.

ClIr Stewart, noted a non-prejudicial interest in items 4a and 4b, in that he
was the ward member for Copmanthorpe, he stated that he sat on the
Ainsty Drainage Board and also, he was a school governor at
Copmanthorpe Primary School.

Cllr Merrett noted that he was a member of the York Cycle Campaign and a
member of the bus forum.



Page 4

58. Minutes (4.37 pm)

Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 6 July 2023 were
approved as a correct record.

59. Public Participation (4.37 pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

60. Plans List (4.37 pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development, relating to the following planning applications, outlining the
proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of
consultees and officers.

61. Land To The South East Of 51 Moor Lane, Copmanthorpe,
York [19/00602/FULM] (4.37 pm)

Members considered a major full application from Mr Tate, for the erection
of 75 dwellings, landscaping, public open space and associated
infrastructure at land to the south east of 51 Moor Lane, Copmanthorpe,
York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a presentation on
the application and the Development Management Officer gave an update
advising Members of the Copmanthorpe Village Design Statement, the
change to the public realm contribution request, additional objections
received and revisions to conditions 2, 26 and 30 and an additional
condition related to timing of works. Members were advised that the
additional information had been assessed and the Officer’s
recommendation remained for approval, following referral of the application
to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, subject
to the completion of a Section 106 agreement.

In response to questions from Members, officers clarified the plans in
relation to the existing trees.

Public Speakers

Graham Auton, Chair of Copmanthorpe Parish Council, spoke in objection
to the application. He highlighted concerns in regard to highway safety and
traffic congestion.



Page 5

Liam Tate, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. He noted that
the site would contribute to affordable housing targets, a robust traffic
assessment had been undertaken and there was to be a significant
contribution made to fund the local infrastructure.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Tate explained that

¢ the additional conditions put forward by officers had been agreed,
including the changes to the s106 agreement.

¢ the details of the sustainable design had not yet been decided. The
lower number of dwellings per hectare improved the biodiversity net
gain of the build.

e The Council’s housing team had lead on the scheme for affordable
housing. The management fee would be calculated on the number of
bedrooms.

e The site management plan was yet to be finalised.

[The Senior Solicitor advised that a management fee adjustment for the
affordable housing could be picked up by the s106 agreement.]

Officers responded to questions from Members and clarified the weighting
that should be applied to various planning policies, noting that until the
Local Plan was adopted, planning applications must accord with the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

It was confirmed that the housing team were satisfied with the level of
affordable housing provided. The details relating to the offsite sports
provision of the s106 agreement were also clarified.

Officers noted that an additional condition was needed to cover the Traffic
Regulation Order (TRO) relating to offsite highways work and highways
officers confirmed that there was no evidence that there would be an
unacceptable impact on the access to Moor Lane / Station Road.

Following debate, Clir Ayre moved the officer recommendation to approve
the application, subject to the conditions in the report, the s106
recommendations, the amendments and additional conditions contained
within the update, the additional monitoring fee of £14,000, and the
additional highway works condition and the revision of the management fee
for the affordable housing as discussed during the meeting. This was
seconded by ClIr Fenton. Following a vote, with nine Members in favour
and two abstentions, it was;

Resolved: That the application be approved, following referral of the
application to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local



Page 6

Government as outlined in the report, subject to the conditions
outlined in the report, the completion of a Section 106

agreement and the revised and additional conditions contained
within the update and the additional conditions outlined above.

Reason:

I.  The application site is located within the general extent of the
York Green Belt and serves a number Green Belt purposes. As
such it falls to be considered under paragraph 143 of the NPPF
which states inappropriate development, is by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in
very special circumstances. Very special circumstances will not
exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, are clearly outweighed
by other considerations. National planning policy dictates that
substantial weight should be given to any harm to the Green
Belt.

ii. In addition to the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
Inappropriateness, it is considered that the proposal would have
a harmful effect on the openness of the Green Belt when one of
the most importance attributes of Green Belts are their
openness and the proposal would undermine at least three of
the five Green Belt purposes. Substantial weight is attached to
the harm that the proposal would cause to the Green Belt.

li. Itis considered that the points identified in paragraphs 5.60 to
5.73 above are considered to amount cumulatively to’ very
special circumstances’ that clearly outweigh the definitional
harm to the green belt, the harm to the openness and
permanence of the green belt [] arising from the proposed
development.

iv. Approval is recommended subject to the referral of the
application to the Secretary of State under The Town and
Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2021 and
the application not being called in by the Secretary of State for
determination. The application is required to be referred to the
Secretary of State as the development is considered to be
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, and the proposed
6348.43 sgm of floorspace would be in excess of the 1000 sgm
threshold set out in the Direction.

[5.57 — 6.09 pm the meeting adjourned for a comfort break.]



Page 7

62. Pikenhills Golf Club, Tadcaster Road, Copmanthorpe, York,
Y023 3UW [22/01074/FULM] (6.09 pm)

Members considered a major full application by Richard Lord for the
redevelopment of Pike Hills Golf Course, involving importation and grading
of soils.

The Head of Planning and Development gave a presentation on the plans
and the Development Management Officer tabled an update which included
a correction to paragraph 5.4 and amendments to conditions 4,5, 6, 8, 10,
14, 16 and 17. Officers also made a verbal request to amend condition 19
for the landscaping to be phased and timetabled with the precise wording
of the condition to be agreed by the Chair and Vice-Chair.

Officers then clarified the plans in relation to the areas of ground to be
raised and the areas for tree and shrub clearance as well as the placement
of the new holes.

Public Speaker

Alastair Hoyle, the planning agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the
application and outlined the reasons for the required improvements to the
golf course. He explained that without the flood prevention measures, the
club would find it difficult to survive.

Richard Lord, the applicant, was also in attendance to answer Member’s
guestions. He responded as follows:

e The improvements were not expected to increase either the size of
the course or membership numbers.

e They were experienced in this type of work at sensitive locations,
they were fully funded and confident in their mitigation measures.

e They would continue to work with Yorkshire Wildlife Trust both during
and after the project life.

Members then asked further questions to the planning and highways
Officers present. Officers reported that:

e There was no expectation of increased usage and therefore no
impact was expected on the existing entrance/exit.

e The risk to the site from imported soil had been mitigated to the
lowest feasible level, as condition 12 referred.

¢ A condition would be added to restrict the temporary entrance to site
traffic only.

e The amendment to condition 19, dealt with the phasing of the
scheme.



Page 8

Following debate, Clir Steward moved the officer recommendation to
approve the application subject to the amended conditions contained within
the update. This was seconded by CliIr Fisher. Following a unanimous
vote in favour, it was;

Resolved:

Reason:

That the application be approved subject to the
amendments to conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 14, 16, 17
contained within the update and the amendment to
condition 19 outlined above.

The proposal seeks to remedy existing difficulties in terms of
provision of facilities and the quality of surface water
drainage at the existing golf course by building upon an
earlier consent from 2014 which has not been fully
implemented. This involves the full implementation of the
previously approved extension and the importation of
approximately 350,000 cubic metres of inert soils which
together with new landscape planting would re-profile the
existing playing surface. The proposed development would
not be inappropriate in Green Belt terms. If conditioned in
detail as part of any planning permission the proposed
construction site access from the A1237 is felt to be
appropriate. The submitted details within the EIA and
supplementary information demonstrate that the biodiversity
value and hydrology of the adjacent SSSI and Ancient
Woodland can be safeguarded. Notwithstanding short-term
harm it is felt that the impact of the proposal upon the
landscape and visual character of the wider area once the
new tree planting is mature would be acceptable. It is felt
that the requirements of paragraphs 180a) and b) of the
NPPF in respect of development and areas of biodiversity
value would be complied with.

The proposal was subject to an Environmental Impact
Assessment under Schedule 2 of the 2017 Environmental
Impact Assessment. Impacts in respect of ecology and
nature conservation, noise and vibration, air quality,
hydrogeology, flooding and drainage and landscape and
visual appearance were all covered in the associated
Environmental Impact Statement. With the appropriate
mitigations outlined together with associated draft conditions



Page 9

the proposal was felt to be acceptable in planning terms and
approval was recommended.

[7.10 — 7.15 pm there was a brief adjournment, during which Clirs Waudby
and Fisher left the meeting]

63. BHE Self Storage Self Storage Facility, Lambshill,
Towthorpe, Moor Lane, Strensall [22/01032/FUL] (7.15 pm)

Prior to the consideration of the item 4c, CllIr Fenton was elected as Vice-
Chair for the remainder of the meeting.

Members considered a full application by Mr Simon Dunn for retrospective
permission to change the use of agricultural land to the siting of 118
storage containers (use class B8) at Moor Lane, Strensall.

The Head of Planning and Development gave a presentation on the plans
and clarified them for Members in response to their questions. Officers
reported that the site was adjacent the special area of conservation at
Strensall Common and the area under consideration was all laid to hard
standing. The 118 containers were situated on the external land, outside
the farm buildings.

Public Speaker

Simon Dunn, the applicant, spoke in favour of the application. He outlined
the importance of having an additional revenue stream and explained how
the storage business provided funds for other areas of his business.
Killian Gallagher, the agent for the applicant, was in attendance to answer
Member’s questions. They confirmed the following:

There were two storage sites in operation.

The hardstanding was installed in 2009.

The site was on agricultural land.

An enhanced planting scheme had been submitted.

The Head of Planning and Development showed Members some recent
photographs of the site and Officers responded to further questions from
Members as follows:

e The officer recommendation was based on the information submitted
at the time of the application.

e |t was possible to tie the planning permission to the applicant, rather
than the property.



Page 10

Following debate, ClIr Steward proposed the officer recommendation to
refuse the application, this was seconded by ClIr Ayre. Following a vote,
with eight Members in favour and one against, it was;

Resolved: That the application be refused.

Reason:

The application site is located within the general extent of the
York Green Belt and serves two of the Green Belt purposes set
out in the NPPF - protecting the countryside from encroachment
and to preserve the setting and special character of the city. As
such it falls to be considered under paragraph 147 of the NPPF
which states inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in
very special circumstances. Very special circumstances will not
exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness and any other harm are clearly outweighed
by other considerations. National planning policy dictates that
substantial weight should be given to any harm to the Green
Belt.

In addition to the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, it is considered that the proposal would have
a harmful effect on the openness of the Green Belt when one of
the most important attributes of Green Belts are their openness,
and that the proposal would undermine the Green Belt
purposes. Substantial weight is attached to the harm that the
proposal would cause to the Green Belt. The harm to the Green
Belt is added to by the harm to visual amenity and character,
and the lack of drainage information identified in this report.

It is not considered that there are benefits arising from the
proposal that clearly outweigh these harm so as to amount to
very special circumstances necessary to justify an exception to
Green Belt policy.

Clir J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.32 pm and finished at 8.00 pm].



Page 11 Agenda Item 4a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 9 November 2023 Ward: Micklegate

Team: West Area

Reference: 23/01640/LBC
Application at: York Station Station Road York
For: Internal and external alterations to front entry portico to

include enclosing area with glazing to create pedestrianised
and retail space with 2no. retail pods, repaving in Yorkshire

flagstones, repairs to brickwork, re-pointing, repair rainwater
goods, reinstate pigeon spikes, removal of external canopy

and repair and repaint roof structure

By: London North Eastern Railway LTD
Application Type: Listed Building Consent
Target Date: 14 November 2023

Recommendation: Refuse

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 Listed building consent is sought for internal and external alterations to the front
entry porte-cochere (sometimes referred to as a portico) at York Railway Station.
The proposals seek to create a semi-indoor environment through glazing of the
existing opening and the introduction of retail pods within this space.

1.2 In summary, the proposals include:

- glazing to openings
- introducing 2no. retail pods along with seating area and barriers
- repaving in Yorkshire flagstones
- removal of the bus canopy and restoration of facade (made good)
- removal of redundant clutter (such as cables)
- installation of digital advertisement panels (4 in total)
- 2no. departure screens
- refurbishment/restoration of the porte-cochére. These works include:
- repairs and repointing to brickwork/stonework where spalled, weathered and
fractured
- reinstatement of missing bricks
- repair of rainwater goods and painted in heritage colour to match original
- general cleaning to remove debris and vegetation growth
- repairs and repainting of roof structure and timber boarding, where required

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 12

- reinstatement of pigeon spikes

1.3 The Applicant has updated the proposed plans removing the reference to the
taxi kiosk as a ‘future information point’, outlining that it will be retained as an office
for the station’s hackney carriage firm, Station Taxis. The plans have also been
updated removing additional advertisements on the eastern external elevation.

1.4 This application is a resubmission of a refused scheme for similar works to
enclose the portico (Ref: 23/00114/LBC).

1.5 York Railway Station was constructed in 1872-7 to designs by Thomas Prosser,
Benjamin Burley and William Peachey. Additions were made in 1900-9 and 1938-9.
In 1942 the station was bomb damaged, repaired in 1947. The railway station
features a porte-cochere, leading to the outer concourse and through to the inner
concourse (known as the frontage building). The frontage building is constructed in
Scarborough yellow brick and is backed by the sharply curved trainshed of wrought
iron arches on cast iron columns and further later platforms and awning. The
frontage building provides the main entrance to the station and was originally a
symmetrical design with the porte-cochere, inner and outer concourses flanked by
two storey wings. The wing to the north was subsequently extended upwards with
the provision of a second floor, which are now occupied by British Transport Police.
The southern wing was severely damaged during the air raid of April 1942 and at
first floor only the external walls remain.

1.6 The railway station is Grade II* listed and is located within the Central Core
Conservation Area and specifically within character area No. 22: Railway Area. For
clarity, referring to the porte-cochere is the correct architectural terminology, which
is French for a carriage porch, allowing carriages to draw up at an entrance and
passengers to alight undercover. A portico is an open porch generally for pedestrian
use. Both terms could be used but porte-cochére is more accurate and as the
Station’s portico, designed and still functioning as a porte-cochére to accommodate
vehicles setting down and picking up passengers, this term will be used in most
instances throughout the report.

Relevant Planning History

23/00114/LBC Internal and external alterations to front entry portico to include
enclosing area with glazing to create pedestrianised and retail space with 2no. retalil
pods, repaving in Yorkshire flagstones, repairs to brickwork, re-pointing, repair
rainwater goods, reinstate pigeon spikes, removal of external canopy and repair and
repaint roof structure; Application Refused 18.04.2023. The reason for refusal cited
the following:

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 13

“The aesthetic and architectural interest of York Station and in particular its porte
cochere are a major part of York's heritage significance. The architectural feature is
not only important in external views, contributing to the setting of other heritage
assets including the Scheduled City Walls, but also in terms of how the Station is
experienced internally. It is also sits within the Railway Area of the York Central
Historic Core Conservation Area and has a positive contribution within this setting.

There is currently a clear architectural language displayed by the porte cochere that
symbolises its original design intention. The proposals to glaze the porte cochéere
confuse an appreciation of the aesthetic and architectural special interest of the
heritage asset. The variety of glazed enclosure methods and the details proposed all
add to a 'clutter' that detracts from the space. In addition, the significance and
setting of the taxi rank which is listed in its own right and is, at present, the only
freestanding structure within the porte cochére will be compromised by the proposed
introduction of the two retail pods. The proposed retail pods will reduce how the
interior of the porte cochere is experienced, reducing its legibility as a grand
entrance/ exit that was intended to be enjoyed as a grand volume.

For these reasons, the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, and in accordance with paragraph 202
of the National Planning Policy Framework 2021, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal. Public benefits relating to the proposals
have not been demonstrated that would outweigh the identified level of harm. The
proposal would, therefore, conflict with the NPPF, Section 16 (2) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Policy D5 of the Publication
Draft City of York”

1.7 There is extensive planning history relating to development within and
surrounding the station. Directly relevant to the proposals are the permissions
(19/00535/FULM and 19/00542/LBC) relating to the redevelopment of the approach
to the Station and the station frontage, referred to as the York Station Gateway
(YSG). The approved applications impact how the porte-cochéere may be used in
the future. These applications secured the re-paving and pedestrianisation of the
porte-cochere, relocating the taxi rank and drop off/pick up to the cleared Parcel
Square area of the station. The YSG will also provide a new pedestrian crossing
directly in front of the porte-cochére’s centre arch. The YSG proposals included no
specific uses for the porte-cochére.

2.0 POLICY BACKGROUND AND LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 14

2.1 The Railway Station (including York Tap (formerly Ladies Tea Room) is Grade
[I* listed. Within the Portico is the Grade Il listed Taxi Kiosk. Section 16 (2) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that in
considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the Local
Planning Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the
building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which
it possesses.

2.2 Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to a listed building or its setting
IS a consideration to which the decision-maker must give considerable importance
and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise to give effect to its statutory
duties under sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Act. There is a "strong presumption”
against the grant of planning permission in such cases.

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

2.3 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
an application is made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicated otherwise. The Council does not have a formally adopted
local plan.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

2.4 The NPPF sets out the government's planning policies for England and how
these are expected to be applied.

2.5 NPPF paragraph 7 sets out that the planning system should contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development. To achieve sustainable development, the
planning system has three overarching objectives: economic, social and
environmental (para. 8). Paragraph 10 advises that at the heart of the NPPF there is
a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF
provides that planning decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

2.6 Section 16 is considered to be of most relevance to this application which
considers the conservation and enhancement of the historic environment.
Paragraph 189 states that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and should
be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations.

Further analysis of the relevant NPPF policies are detailed at paragraphs 5.11 to
5.14 of this Report.

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 15

Draft Local Plans

2.7 The City of York Draft Local Plan (DLP) was submitted for examination on 25
May 2018 which four rounds of hearings undertaken to date. In accordance with
paragraph 48 of the NPPF (as revised), the relevant 2018 emerging plan policies
are capable of being a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications. Policies from the emerging plan which are considered relevant and
can be attached moderate weight due to their compliance with the NPPF and lack of
unresolved objections include:

D5 Listed Buildings
T3 York Railway Station and associated operational facilities

2.8 The Development Control Local Plan (DCLP) was approved for development
management purposes in April 2005. Whilst the DCLP does not form part of the
statutory development plan, its policies are considered to be capable of being
material considerations and can be afforded very little weight in the determination of
planning applications where policies relevant to the application are consistent with
those in the NPPF.

2.9 Policy D5 of the DLP states that proposals affecting a listed building or its setting
will be supported where they (i) preserve, enhance or better reveal those elements
which contribute to the significance of the building or its setting. The more important
the building, the greater the weight that will be given to its conservation; and (ii) help
secure a sustainable future for a building at risk; (iii) are accompanied by an
appropriate, evidence based heritage statement assessing the significance of the
building. Harm to an element which contributes to the significance of a listed building
or its setting will be permitted only where this is outweighed by the public benefits of
the proposal. Policy D5 aligns with the requirements of the NPPF.

2.10 Policy T3 of the DLP relates to York Railway Station and Associated
Operational Facilities. It states that development will be supported that i) conserves
and where appropriate enhances those elements that contribute to the significance
of the Grade II* station and ii) improves the setting of and approaches to the station
and the experience of those using it to meet the demands of the modern ralil
customer.

Conservation Development Strateqgies

2.11 There are two conservation development strategies produced at different times
and for different purposes; they do not form part of the evidence base underpinning
the DLP but can be a material planning consideration in the determination of
planning applications. Both documents set out the historical development and

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 16

current use of the station, its approach and establishes the inherent characteristics
and heritage significances of the station and its surrounds.

- York Station Conservation Development Strategy (CDS) (October 2013) prepared
by John Ives of PPIY Limited, on behalf of East Coast Main Line Company, in
association with the City of York Council, the Railway Heritage Trust and Network
Rail with input from Historic England

2.12 The CDS states that in developing future proposals for the station, the value of
the significant features must be taken into account and protected. One of the most
important of these is the porte-cochere and concourse areas. The CDS specifies
that any works must preserve the integrity of the brickwork structure, taking care not
to obscure or damage the fabric by unnecessary alterations, signs/advertising
displays or ill-placed trading units. Further in the document and with specific
reference to the potential for development, it states that consideration could be
given to glazing the arched areas and that the porte-cochere is a significant space
and its future development should allow continued appreciation of this, whether road
vehicles continue to be allowed inside or not.

- York Station Conservation Management Strategy (CMS) (November 2020)
produced by Alan Baxter Ltd, prepared for Network Rail.

2.13 ltis outlined in the CMS (Chapter 9, Section 9.4 Conservation Design and
Development Guidance) that in respect to the porte-cochére, its architectural
character and historical function as a semi-open threshold should be respected. It
should remain primarily a station entrance with priority given to generous and
intuitive passenger flow. Complimentary activity should be considered providing that
it is manifestly secondary in footprint, location and design to passenger movement.
Removing the attached bus shelter would do much to restore its architectural
presence and create a more dignified entrance to the station.

2.14 1t is highlighted in the CMS (Chapter 8, Section 8.8 Conservation
Management: Outer Concourse and Porte-Cochere) that the orientation of the porte-
cochére and outer concourse from the street can be confusing because no single
route through the porte-cochére has precedence and the retail and pop up stalls in
the concourse, not to mention the old NER signal, blunt the clarity of the original
axis. The intention to give primacy to the axial route across the centre of the porte-
cochere, added to the removal of taxis, will help to remedy some of that confusion.

2.15 It is noted that the existing glazed screens and easterly orientation already

provide a high degree weather protection. The CMS set out that the space could be
used as an attractive anteroom to the station, but would need to be carefully

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 17

controlled, in the design of facilities, signage and lighting with the route to the street
and city centre remaining the prime function.

Other guidance

- Department for Transport Inclusive Mobility: A guide to best practice on pedestrian
and Transport Infrastructure (December 2021) (“the Guide”)

2.16 This guidance sets out good practice in the creation and maintenance of an
accessible and inclusive built environment and public realm. It should be considered
an essential document for those seeking to produce an inclusive environment and
meeting the requirements of the Act, including the public sector Equality Duty, and
other legislation.

2.17 Specifically, this guidance sets out general factors stating in para. 3.2 that a
wheelchair and a non-wheelchair using person side-by-side need 1500mm width.
The recommended walking distance limit without a rest for those with a walking stick
and crane users is 50m (para 3.4).

2.18 ltis further outlined in section 11 ‘“Transport Buildings: access and facilities’ .
Paragraph 11.2 of the Guide states that if possible, entrances to stations should not
have doors, though this is not always feasible, for reasons of security or climate
control. Where there are doors, they should preferably be automatic, linked either to
a weight sensor or to sensors mounted above the door.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development (DCSD) (Conservation Officer)

3.1 | do not consider that the current scheme represents a significant improvement
in comparison with the refused scheme. Although the subdivision of the glazing to
the large archways is better proportioned and more elegant, the positioning of the
glazing within the reveals of the masonry would be more detrimental than the
recessed curtain glazing in the former scheme. The opening up of original entrances
on the east front would probably be acceptable in the light of the evidence of the
original design, but the removal of an interesting and well-executed early
intervention is not without heritage impact.

3.2 The retail units remain highly intrusive structures and the changes to form and
materials do not alter their essential impact on the character of the space, which in
conjunction with the barriered seating areas would be one that radically changed the

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 18

feel and function of the space as a grand and generous open portico designed for
comfortable entry to and departure from the station.

3.3 The use of flagstone paving would be preferable to a smaller format stone, but
that can be controlled through the permitted 2019 scheme.

3.4 There are a number of public benefits that can be weighed against the identified
harms, and | accept that many of these would be positive outcomes, but | question
whether a) the full extent of enclosure and the degree of commercial infrastructure
proposed are necessary to secure them all; and b) whether they are of a sufficient
magnitude to outweigh the significant harm to the heritage significance of the II*
listed building.

3.5 The alterations to the building (glazing, doorways, new structures) appear to be
driven principally by anticipated requirements of operators of the proposed
commercial uses, but the LPA has previously rejected the construction of two
permanent retail units and associated structures within the porte-cochére due to the
effect on its special spatial character and the setting of the listed taxi office, cited in
its reason for refusal of application ref. 23/00114/LBC. The current proposal is not
substantively different to the former one and | remain of the view that the scheme
lacks clear and convincing justification.

EXTERNAL

Historic England

3.6 We do not object to the proposal but wish to offer advice on matters of design
and detail that we feel need to be addressed to ensure the benefits of the scheme
are achieved, and to meet the requirements of Chapters 12 and 16 of the NPPF.

3.7 ltis recognised that public benefits will be achieved by the scheme, however
there will be some harm caused to the significance of the Grade II* station, primarily
as a result of ‘glazing in’ of all the openings.

3.8 The Station is clearly visible from the ancient Scheduled City Walls and in this
sense serves to orientate visitors in relation to the historic core, marked by the
Minster and this key point of arrival. The depth of the openings in the arched
frontage are important in terms of appreciating the function of the portico as a
structure to be moved thought, from the City Walls and approaches to the station
from within the Conservation Area.

3.9 Glazing — the greatest impact on the building will result from the addition of
structural glazing to all of the openings. This will fundamentally change the historic

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 19

character of the space as an area that is semi-open which ties in with its transitional
function.

3.10 The structural glazing impact will be felt to greatest effect at the north and
south openings. The depth of the glazing will allow enough shadow depth to be
achieved to maintain the legibility of the original open character of the arch when
approaching from outside. However, the visual change will be most clearly felt
internally where the sections of full height glazing will slightly obscure the
architectural detailing behind. The alignment of the vertical steel mullions with the
stone in the keyed segmental arches running down to portal frame, defining a
centralised doorway is a positive design response.

3.11 Retail pods- these are relatively modest in terms of size and scale to the
height and depth of the portico. The zinc roof and cedar cladding will provide a
simple contrast to the bold brickwork and openings of the Portico.

3.12 Flooring- the alignment of the stone paving in different areas could be
strengthened by the use of different sizes and shapes of paving. The alignment
should be clearly defined in more detailed drawings of the different zones.

3.13 Grade Il listed taxi cab kiosk — there is the opportunity for this structure to be
celebrated within this scheme. More detail should be provided regarding the short,
medium and long term plans for the repairs to this structure and any alterations that
may be required to facilitate its new use.

3.14 Detailed matters

- moveable banners — need consistency of size, position and design. As
potentially quite intrusive new features of the space, their size and number should
be limited to avoid cluttering the space.

- backlit signage for north and south entrances — needs to be a consistent
approach to colours and design

- manifestations on the sliding glass door — we suggest detailed designs
should be carefully considered in the context of the wider gateway project.

3.15 We consider that the case has been made for the public benefits resulting from
the proposal could be considered to outweigh the harm to the heritage significance
of the station building. The success of a scheme of this nature relies not only on a
close adherence to the submitted plans and the choice of materials but also on
everyday operational management, an aspect that is largely outside the control of
the planning system.

3.16 Itis in the interests of the station operator to maintain the quality of their
investment but details secured by condition, of signage and storage standards for

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 20

retailers and the regular cleaving of glazing and stonework would provide an
assurance that important everyday consequences have been fully covered.

Micklegate Planning Panel

3.17 Objection; the retail unit at the northern end of the Station should be removed
because it will impede the free flow of pedestrians, the majority of whom will use the
northern entrance and cut across the proposed Piazza because that is the shortest
route between the Station and the city centre.

Council for British Archaeology (CBA)

3.18 The CBA obiject to this application. The proposed ‘glazing in’ and use of
York’s station’s porte-cochere for a pair of retail pods would be a missed opportunity
to create an impressive welcoming space at this gateway to the city that identifies
York’s special interest and identity. This commercial use, duplicating an existing
offer, is at odds with paragraph 197 of the NPPF. We also believe paragraphs 200
and 202 not to be met.

3.19 In order to retain the character and significance of the porte-cochere the CBA
believe the principle north and south openings should remain open and unglazed.
We question the premise that these routes will become less used by pedestrian
users of the station.

3.20 Rather than commercialising the space it could be used to showcase the city’s
identity and heritage; there are many pop up uses that could be hosted within the
porte-cochere that do not require construction of these permanent features that
would entail subdivision and enclosure of the space, This application follows
precedents fir similar works at stations including Newcastle Central where the
glazing in and introduction of free-standing, commercial pods in the porte-cochere
has not created a welcoming space at all but rather a dead space with opportunities
limited by the permanent fixtures.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 The application has been advertised by site and press notice. 5 letters of
objection including one on behalf of York Disability Rights Forum have been
received and these can be summarised as follows:

- priority remains of creating a café rather than making life easier for passengers

- removing vehicles from inside the portico will result in passengers having to walk
further to reach main parts of the station, which is not an improvement

- passengers will begin their journey exposed to the elements

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 21

- negatively affect wheelchair users and other disabled passengers

- Blue Badge parking is still further away than at present and will now involve an
uncovered route into the station

- no assessment of potential harms to accessibility caused by the scheme and the
necessary mitigations to avoid them

- benches reduced from 9 to 6

- the only seating proposed that is not part of a café pod is the seating currently in
place

- the proposed doors to the north and south are actually narrower that the current
pedestrian exits and lead to congestion and pinch points. These doors are below
the recommended clear opening width contained within the government’s Inclusive
Mobility guidance

- use of glass for the doors and surrounding wall panels is a hazard for visually
impaired people

- use of current station taxi office as a customer information point is concerning; the
building is not currently accessible as there is a step and therefore the building is
entirely unsuitable for this purpose

- no Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken

- assumptions made regarding pedestrian flows of the north and south compared to
the central entrance are spurious assumptions not meticulous, evidence-based
planning and transport policy

- contradiction; the concern for appreciation of the original purpose of the space yet
saying it is not viable without adding commercial units

- already plentiful opportunities to eat and drink within the station complex

- the principal purpose of the built environment is function and that should be in a
way that benefits all users

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 Key Issues:

- Impact of the works on the special architectural and historic interest of York
Railway Station (Grade I1*)
- Significance of station
- Considering potential impacts
- Public Sector Equality Duty
- Conclusion of Harm
- Public Benefits

ASSESSMENT

Significance of station

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 22

5.2 In order to understand the potential impacts of the proposal on the significance
of any heritage asset, the significance of the heritage asset in question should be
described by the applicant, including any contribution made by their setting, with the
level of detail proportionate to the assets importance and no more than is sufficient
to understand the potential impact (NPPF para 194).

5.3 There are many sources of information setting out the significance of the
station. Along with the Applicant’s Design, Access and Heritage Statement the LPA
has consulted both conservation development strategies as set out in Section 2
(para’s. 2.10 — 2.13 above) of this report in order to identify and assess the
particular significance of the Railway Station and more specifically the porte-
cochere. In understanding the heritage significance of an asset, Historic England in
their document, Conservation Principles, Policies and Guidance for the Sustainable
Management of the Historic Environment, sets out the criteria for understanding its
heritage values, Evidential, Value, Historical Value, Aesthetic Value and Communal
Value.

5.4 Overall, the Railway Station is of high significance which is derived from the
aesthetic values for its majestic curve of the train shed with fine arches and cast-iron
detailing as well as the structural innovation in its design having historical value. The
main station buildings (the porte-cochére, the entrance building and the two
concourse wings) have retained much of their appearance (the south concourse
wing the result of a sensitive rebuilding after wartime damage).

5.5 The original historical layout of the concourse area survives intact and is mostly
still in use as intended; the symmetrical arrangement of the inner and outer
concourses have historical and evidential value, with also communal interest as a
key focus on passenger activity and contributes high significance. The quality and
consistency of the station however is compromised by later additions. The interiors
are mostly low grade and substantially altered.

5.6 Furthermore, the context of the station in relation to the city, the City Walls and
Queen Street site also contributes to its significance. The station serves as a major
entrance to the city and faces the city ramparts and walls. The city has strong links
with railway history and much of the historic railway environment around the station
survives. The station is also a daily facility for countless railway workers,
commuters and tourists, adding high historic and communal values to the
significance of the station.

5.7 The significance of the porte-cocheére is derived in part from its architectural
character and in part from its historical function as a semi-open threshold.
Sometimes referred to as the ‘Portico’, it is the principal architectural element of the
station entrance. It functions as a transitional zone between the station and the city,

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 23

marking arrival and departure. The porte-cochere fronting the station building
covers a roadway serving taxis as it once served horsedrawn carriages. It has
always been a semi open structure used for passenger movement.

5.8 The porte-cochére is designed with nine segmental arches, glazing panels
installed to the eastern elevation arches in 1905. Attached to the front elevation of
the porte-cochere is a cantilevered double-sided clock (c1880) which does not
contain its original mechanisms and it is lacking a section of the timber surround.
The only alterations it has undergone have been the addition of the bus shelter
canopy (in 1940), together with adjustments to the glazing and making of a central
opening for passengers wanting to go and from buses.

5.9 Inside the porte-cochere, in the north-eastern corner is the taxi kiosk (c.1900)
which is Grade Il listed in its own right (List entry Number: 1256557). It is attributed
historical value for being a rare survivor of what was a common feature on railway
stations, analogous to the better-known London cabmen’s shelters. The contrast of
its simple diagonal panelling and round arched windows with the tall arches of the
porte-cochere gives it some aesthetic value in terms of its visual contribution to the
porte-cochere. Alan Baxter’'s Conservation Development Strategy suggest that the
taxi kiosk was extended in the 1940s.

5.10 There are other heritage values associated with other areas of the station, and
they are still recognised, however these proposals do not impact upon them directly.

Considering potential impacts

5.11 The NPPF (para 199) outlines that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should
be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater
the weight should be). Further in para. 200, any harm to, or loss of, the significance
of a designated heritage asset, should require clear and convincing justification.

5.12 Paragraph 197 of the NPPF sets out that LPAs should take account of the
following when determining applications:
a) The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
b) The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and
c) The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.

5.13 Further paragraph 206 of the NPPF outlines that LPAs should look for
opportunities for new development within conservation areas and the setting of

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 24

heritage assets, to better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those
elements of the setting which make a positive contribution to the asset (or which
better reveal its significance) should be treated favourably.

5.14 The NPPF makes a distinction between proposals which cause ‘substantial
harm’ to a designated heritage asset (paragraph 201) and those which lead to ‘less
than substantial harm’ (paragraph 202). Different tests are applied accordingly.
Paragraph 202 states that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should
be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its
optimum viable use.

Taking each part of the proposals in turn:

Glazing of the Porte-Cochére

5.15 On the front, eastern elevation, the proposal seeks the infilling of the three
central arches with glass sliding doors with infill glass above. The two balustrades
to the archways flanking the existing entrance bay will be removed. The previous
proposal sought this arrangement for only the central arch, which is currently open
to allow access to the existing bus stops. The 6no. remaining arches will be infilled
with glass, with the stone balustrades retained. The external canopy that extends
across the eastern elevation will be removed.

5.16 The Conservation Officer has stated that following an on-site examination, the
two bays flanking the existing entrance are concrete castings, and a study of an
1877 drawing suggests that they were originally open, albeit infilled by the 1890s.
The opening of these bays would reverse an interesting and very early intervention,
but support the objective of the station gateway project in directing travellers
towards the eastern front as the principal entrance and exit to the station; and would
restore an imposing element of the original facade design.

5.17 On both side elevations (north and south) it is also intended to infill the arches
with glazing to create new glass sliding doorways. The current scheme seeks a
more elegant subdivision, reducing the number of panes from the previous scheme
from 16 to 8. The size of the doorway is also reduced and centred. The infilling
structure to the archways in the north, east and south elevations is brought
substantially forward to occupy the reveals of the masonry with the glazing being set
215mm back from the external face, rather than the internal ‘curtain glazing’
construction of the refused scheme. Whilst the subdivision of the glazing to the
large archways is better proportioned and more elegant, the positioning of the
glazing within the reveals of the masonry would be more detrimental than the
recessed curtain glazing proposed in the refused scheme. The result being that

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 25

there will not be any effective impression of ‘shadow depth’ and the glazing will have
a much greater impact externally, from where it will not appear subordinate or
recessive and detract from the legibility of the intervention as a lightweight modern
addition to historically open arches.

5.18 The principal concern, shared by heritage consultees (the Council’s
Conservation Officer and Historic England) however relates to the principle of the
glazing of the Porte-cochere, which will fundamentally change the historic character
of the space as an area that is semi-open which ties with its transitional function.

Installation of Retail Pods

5.19 Following from the refused application, the retail units have been reconfigured
as more elongated, timber-clad structures with canted leading corners to ease
views. At their, widest point, they would measure 9.6m x 3m and would be 2sgm
larger than those sought under the previously refused scheme (measuring 6.5m x
4m). The former design for the units also incorporated two glass walls, with the
effect being of a lighter weight structure. The scale and areas of barriered seating
are broadly similar, occupying the north western and south western corners of the
Porte-cochere.

5.20 The retail units remain highly intrusive structures and the changes to form and
materials do not alter their impact on the character of the space, which in
conjunction with the barriered seating areas would add visual clutter to this space
and radically changing the feel and function of the space as a grand and generous
open portico designed for comfortable entry to and departure from the station, in
addition to limiting the areas for circulation and pedestrian movement throughout the
building.

5.21 At present, the taxi kiosk is the only freestanding structure within the Porte-
cochére. This is listed in its own right and is a rare survivor of what was a common
feature on railway stations. The proposed retail units will compromise its setting and
reduce its visual prominence.

5.22 The construction of permanent structures and the erection of barriers to define
ancillary seating would subdivide and commercialise the space in a manner that
would be alien to its historical function and open character and undermine its grand
volume. It would also undermine the sense of the architectural legibility of the wider
station building, which is a highly Victorian sequence of distinct spaces designed
through form, scale and architectural treatment for different functions. From the
scale and grandeur of the train shed, the roof continuing over the inner concourse,
to the more intimate enclosure of the original booking hall under its hammer beam
roof, which now functions as a sort of entrance hall, and out into the semi-open

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 26

porte-cochére as a genuinely transitional structure between station and city, the
general visitor would be less able to readily appreciate the distinctive character of
the sequence of spaces if the porte-cochére were enclosed and commercialised as
proposed. Itis considered that the proposal would significantly erode architectural
and historical significances of the listed building and that the harm would fall at the
higher end of the less than substantial category.

5.23 Concerns regarding the siting of the retail pods are shared by a number of
objectors, particularly those with mobility issues. Despite there being no concern
from Historic England, there remains concern regarding the proposed material
palette, although it is recognised that this could be dealt with through condition
should the application have been found to be acceptable in other respects.

Paving

5.24 The proposed floor paving design is slightly modified from the previous
scheme, suggesting a larger format of paving stone. Brass stud tactile paving is
also incorporated into the floor finish. Historic England have suggested the
alignment of the stone paving in different areas could be strengthened by the use of
different sizes and shapes of paving and the alignment more clearly defined in
details drawings of the different zones. The Council’s Conservation officer has
suggested that the use of flagstone paving would be preferable to a smaller format
stone, but the approach to the paving could be developed through condition.

Other design matters

5.25 Historic England has commented on the need for consistency with approach to
size, position, design and colours of any moveable banners and signage as well as
manifestations on the sliding glass doors. Moveable banners have the potential to
clutter the space. It is recognised that these design elements could be dealt with
through conditions should the application be found to be acceptable in other
respects.

Other issues raised

5.26 Concern has been expressed by a number of objectors with respect to the
closure of the portico for taxi drop off and pick up. It should be noted that the
principle of closing the porte-cochere to vehicles and also the relocation of the taxi
area, short stay parking (including disabled parking) has already been granted
consent as part of the Station Gateway works approved under 19/00535/FULM.

Public Sector Equality Duty

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 27

5.27 The proposal will have an impact on users of the Station and the Porte-
Cochere which will undoubtedly include disabled users. Rather that creating an
open obstacle-free transitional space, the provision of retail units along with barriers
would subdivide and enclose the space, creating obstacles and further tunnelling
users to the pre-determined axial routes. Disability is a protected characteristic
under the Equality Act 2010. (The other protected characteristics under the Equality
Act 2010 are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation and
should not be wholly disregarded).

5.28 Under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 a public authority must in the
exercise of its functions have “due regard” to the need to eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct; advance equality of
opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it and foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. This is known as
the Public Sector Equality Duty (“PSED”).

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

C) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low

5.29 There is no requirement on an LPA to undertake a written Equalities Impact
Assessment (“EqIA”) to demonstrate that the PSED has been performed. The
application of the PSED is entirely fact sensitive to each case, there is not a single
prescribed method for applying the PSED.

5.30 National and Local planning information requirements set out details of the
number and type of forms and plans that need to be submitted with a planning
application to ensure its validity. There is no requirement, under the National
planning information requirements nor local information requirements to provide an
EqlA in relation to this application.

5.31 Movement through the space will change from vehicles passing longitudinally
on the south-north axis to pedestrians passing west-east and is principally in
response to the York Station Gateway, which removes the carriageway from the
porte-cochere and creates a pedestrian crossing across Station Road aligned to the

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 28

central openings. The clear opening widths of the north and south entrances/exits
will be 1500mm and 1670mm within the entrance/exit created in the eastern
elevation demonstrate that this achieves the guidance set out in Inclusive Mobility
for a wheelchair and non-wheelchair person side-by-side. Pedestrian will be
directed through the central openings in the eastern elevation which are marginally
wider than the recommended width and as there would be three, as oppose to one
opening, providing additional space and comfort.

5.32 Objectors refer to matters concerning the reorganisation of the parking in and
around the Station and the removal of taxis and cars from the porte-cochére which
have already been secured under the Station Gateway applications. Those

applications considered the impact on people with disabilities and reduced mobility.

5.33 The PSED does not specify a particular substantive outcome but requires the
LPA to ensure that the decision made has been taken with “due regard” to its
equality implications.

5.34 Officers have given due regard to the equality implications of the proposals in
making its recommendation. The issues with regard thereto are noted above in
relation to this application but do not raise any matters that would outweigh the
material planning considerations.

Conclusion of Harm

5.35 As detailed above, the proposals will impact the porte-cochére area and the
individually Grade Il listed taxi kiosk of the railway station, which are individually
significant in their own right, as described above, as well as contributing to the
overall significance of the railway station. The station has generally high levels of
aesthetic, historical, evidential and communal values, which contributes to the high
significance of the station.

5.36 The assessment concludes, as with the previous refused scheme, that the
proposal will result in less than substantial harm to the significance of this
designated heritage asset. This harm has been quantified at being at the upper end
of less than substantial harm.

5.37 Paragraph 202 of the NPPF sets out that where a development proposal will
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be outweighed against the public benefits of the proposal,
including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

5.38 Planning Practice Guidance sets out what is meant by the term public benefits
and states that:

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 29

“Public benefits may follow from many developments and could be anything that
delivers economic, social or environmental objectives as described in the National
Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 8). Public benefits should flow from the
proposed development. They should be of a nature or scale to be of benefit to the
public at large and not just be a private benefit. However, benefits do not always
have to be visible or accessible to the public in order to be genuine public benefits,
for example, works to a listed private dwelling which secure its future as a
designated heritage asset could be a public benefit. Examples of heritage benefits
may include:

- sustaining or enhancing the significance of a heritage asset and the

contribution of its setting

- reducing or removing risks to a heritage asset

- securing the optimum viable use of a heritage asset in support of its long

term conservation”
(Paragraph: 020 Reference ID: 18a-020-20190723 Revision date: 23 07 2019)

- Public Benefits

5.39 Reviewing the information submitted and discussed in support of the scheme,
there are a number of public benefits that can be weighed against the identified
harms. These include;

- Removal of the bus shelter canopy from the east elevation and repair of the
masonry.

- Reinstatement of the ¢.1905 glazing pattern to the eastern elevation

- Extensive fabric repairs and restoration including to spalling brickwork and mortar;
rainwater goods; steam cleaning; repainting; removal of redundant cabling

- New lighting within the porte-cochére

- Provision of new facilities for passengers consisting of retail units and a newly-
presented space

- Exclusion of birds

- Improved surveillance/security of space to discourage anti-social behaviour

5.40 Itis considered that the special spatial character and the setting of the listed
taxi office have not been addressed. The public benefits are considered to be
limited in nature and scale and do not outweigh the harms to the heritage assets.

5.41 Accordingly, these public benefits would not be considered to outweigh the
harms to the special interest of the listed building and the setting of other heritage
assets. For this reason, the proposal would conflict with the NPPF and is
recommended for refusal.

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development

Page 30
6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 York Railway Station is of high significance, derived from the aesthetic and
historical values of the curve of the train shed with fine arches and cast-iron detailing
as well as the structural innovation in its design. The main station buildings (the
porte-cochere, the entrance building and the two concourse wings) have retained
much of their appearance and symmetrical arrangement surviving intact and mostly
still in use as intended. The significance of the porte-cocheére is derived in part from
its architectural character and in part from its historical function as a semi-open
threshold. Additionally, the context of the station in relation to the city, the City Walls
and Queen Street site also contributes to its significance. The station serves as a
major entrance to the city and contributes to the setting of the heritage assets
including the city ramparts and walls. The city has strong links with railway history
and much of the historic railway environment around the station survives.

6.2 There is currently a clear architectural language displayed by the porte-cochere
that symbolises its original design intention. The proposals to glaze the porte-
cochére confuse an appreciation of the aesthetic and architectural special interest of
this heritage asset. The position of the glazing within the reveals of the masonry will
result in a much greater impact externally, detracting from the legibility of a
lightweight modern addition to the historically open arches. In addition, the
significance and setting of the taxi kiosk which is listed in its own right and is, at
present, the only freestanding structure within the porte-cochere will be
compromised by the introduction of the two retail pods. The proposed retail pods
will reduce how the interior of the porte-cochere is experienced, undermining its
grand volume, historical function and open character as well as the sense of the
architectural legibility of the wider station building.

6.3 For these reasons, the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to
the significance of the designated heritage assets, in this case the Grade II* listed
railway station and the Grade Il listed taxi kiosk. In accordance with para. 202 of the
NPPF, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. Itis
considered that the Public benefits of the proposal do not outweigh the identified
level of harm. The proposal therefore would conflict with the NPPF, Section 16 (2)
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and policy D5 of
the City of York Draft Local Plan (2018).

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Refuse

1  The aesthetic and architectural interest of York Station and in particular its
porte cochére are a major part of York’s heritage significance. The

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



Page 31

significance of the porte-cochere is derived in part from its architectural
character and in part from its historical function as a semi-open threshold. The
architectural feature is not only important in external views, contributing to the
setting of other heritage assets including the Scheduled City Walls, but also in
terms of how the Station is experienced internally. It is also sits within the
Railway Area of the York Central Historic Core Conservation Area and has a
positive contribution within this setting.

There is currently a clear architectural language displayed by the porte-
cochere that symbolises its original design intention. The proposals to glaze
the porte-cochere confuse an appreciation of the aesthetic and architectural
special interest of this heritage asset. The position of the glazing within the
reveals of the masonry will result in a much greater impact externally,
detracting from the legibility of a lightweight modern addition to the historically
open arches. In addition, the significance and setting of the taxi kiosk which is
listed in its own right and is, at present, the only freestanding structure within
the porte-cochere will be compromised by the introduction of the two retalil
pods. The proposed retail pods will reduce how the interior of the porte-
cochere is experienced, undermining its grand volume, historical function and
open character as well as the sense of the architectural legibility of the wider
station building.

For these reasons, the proposal would result in less than substantial harm to
the significance of the designated heritage assets, in this case the Grade II*
listed railway station and the Grade Il listed taxi kiosk. In accordance with
para. 202 of the NPPF, this harm should be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal. Public benefits of the proposal do not outweigh the
identified level of harm. The proposal therefore would conflict with the NPPF,
Section 16 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 and policy D5 of the City of York Draft Local Plan (2018).

8.0 INFORMATIVES:

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Lindsay Jenkins
Tel No: 01904 554575

Application Reference Number: 23/01640/LBC Item No: 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

York Station, Station Road, York
23/01640/LBC

\ B =

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

-

'
(@)
York (Station)
Y/
Scale: 1:1196

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 27 October 2023

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on 9" November 2023

Gg abed



23/01640/LBC — York Station, Station Road,
York

Internal and external alterations to front entry portico to include
enclosing area with glazing to create pedestrianised and retail space
with 2no. retall pods, repaving in Yorkshire flagstones, repairs to
brickwork, re-pointing, repair rainwater goods, reinstate pigeon
spikes, removal of external canopy and repair and repaint roof
structure

CCCCCCC

og abed



Site Location Plan

bed

L€ ®

@R‘

E‘?.
it

SEEDY

Architects

Location Plan
1:1250

Pamnage Chaminr, 3 P arge, Manchasir L3 240 D11 5225750

status
LBC Application

LOMDTGN NMQRTH EASTERMN RAILWAY
Iob tite

YORK STATION PORTICO

ENHANCEMENT
|
— [r——
Z‘ %‘ Location Plan
— PN CITY OF
P
I )
checker | dee
o s
wcain papar sizs
b B
Projecino, | Typs | Seed drawingno. | Flev.
3205 |® |ADWGLP-O01  [A02

COUNCIL

i




External (Eastern)
Elevation of Porte-
cochere

4—":-;-‘%‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023 4




Existing eastern
elevation and
current central
opening

4—"1;-“\“‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

6€ abed



Existing External
Southern Elevation

4—":-;-‘%‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Existing External
Northern Elevation

\
=g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Internal Eastern Elevation

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

S ——- N * | em— T E——
T\ LT O
' Pockington l
Market Welghton

Lr_:':-, o
1 Poddrrm | oy

- K=

IRSSRATEIOG.

2L e T M e R RO SR RCR

BN e
LA

kA

R S e B Vs

P\’( A 3 ok oS ST, RRSTEA TR

B s e 1 = i v
Yohaom T

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

eI

T A I T AR S AT S

.—-V."[ -

N 4 ."
\‘
R = = R 3,
SN, G, ¢ S

SFAREED. P,
T e T S

O R SR e,




Internal Western
Elevation

YORK iss

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Internal Southern
Elevation

BN\ N\ VLU

< "\NWRNRN R L ) A S/

\
—ioh CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Internal Northern
Elevation
Including Taxi
Kiosk (Grade Il
Listed)

\
—ioh CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Existing Floor Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LI

Existing Floor Plan
1:100

e~ S 5
1 919 3420 1488 3405 1494 335 1410 3800 1382 3963 1480 3468 1432 3438 1
] ]
! | | 1 !
T-T-T-H-T-T-1-1
2 8
1 &
" g tiobe
(e pw replaced, location TBG Tr
i 2
_ |
B L
= 11 8
] ]
. H
& O*L [[ ;
] ot e
T ¢
g O 0 0 O 0 0O @ O O O O ]
~ Portico ¥
o o
5 T N e B P [ g
OO _of, " ) v | V| o JfRo g T 1
r )
ololelelEleEldlelzg2lzl glel =2 el =2 el glelel ezl =l =lsl
re——
I
e @1 110

®

017 5. s s s, ot o s s e

e T e o b e o e b i

NOTES:

1. Exiating bollards 1o be removed.
2. Exiating ketbe and surfacing to be removed
3. Removal of exsting seating and signage:

4. Removal of all advertising poater cases and putto
stomge

5. Exioting poat box to be reloesied exiemally fo the
buiding to be picked up by the York Stabon Gateway
‘acheme.

6. Removal and recovery of existing GIS acreens

7. Luggage troliey2 to be reiocated, location TBC

= otn

SEEDY

Architects

mﬂ

g, obed

ERRR

Pacrnon G 3P, Macchacar M5 44 561 522 5750

stah
LBC Application

LNER

L ONDON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob title
‘YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Localion

dmwing fille
Existing Floor Plan

ot
En o401/2008

o o4p1/208

scale paper aize
1:100 =

Projectro. | Typs |Seed drawing no. FRev.
3295 A |ADWGGF100 | 402




Proposed Floor Plan

/l

CITY OF

YT)Rﬁ{

COUNCIL

New Sliding
doern sbimarits
~y

Hew giazing siigned io
ingice of the inner wall

SATTRTT

>
aep)
8

éy

615

5 1760
i
07

—

2 s ew tes | ows mos s s s, 146 s w10 jo e
A—Dé'G 302 I 50, I
L = = T
B == Dl e [SEn S I
E N e =0 I ':;"1;1.‘
z 4 O t
- S 2 N ) T H
Lk o O~ A g
§ 3| % 2
§ < o
gy , : ramem el
=T anel
e |1 T8 | i
opening = il —
pa = m ]
e L =

N
wclios

1 1830
T 100

|| Mew glazed nfl to-
‘opening

1828

R

Rstsil Pod

1601

[ 1
I
=4 H—fﬂhlf-ﬂ

|
‘h\“ﬁ

| i

1/

B!
il
%i

R
L L

2315

1586

1517

1658

iiERit]
LA
|

1455

g18 | 1527 | 1515 | 1sa7 | e | 1527 ||| 1607

1989 | 1480 I 1542

Proposed Floor Plan
1:100

Scale @ A1: 1:100

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

©
A —
NOTES:
«Q
®
:.l:l*ﬂ:-;;;m EE h
S
- ‘ME.::M.W -~
Fimen thrmbar | Ose | O | e

SEEDY

Architects

Prnarmge Chrmr, 3 P, Horbosins 32U D16 5225750

sishin
LBC Application

LNER

MORTH EASTERN RAIWAY

LOMDaN

iob title
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Locaion

drauing e
Proposed Floor Plan

author clate.
) 1ssrz0

checker date

@ 50572028

cals ™

1:100 a1

Projectno. | Type | Seed drawing no. Rev.
3295 A A-DWG-GF-101 ADs




Proposed Floor Plans

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Staion Square

nily Agigh il il iy mipinlinpiglind iy ull
H, ———\{HHHH] T — o
g L] ] L Y | [ =
g L [ 5 H et H HH HH H | a I
i 1T == H s Rplyunt] ipSppupty Inty EIEEENE TH

| CDM Waming L [ - L [ N [ . [ . [

L [ || 7JTT T%ET‘ LA Rl 7l [ pE R N

= H = L EY e oy by ER=NnlN
— s | Fef 1 e ;

@ Proposed Floor Finishes

1.100

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

Outer Goncourse:

Key

‘York Sand Stone Flag Paving (450x900 mm)

Enlrance mating

ork Sand Stone Paving (200:600mm) - TBG

Brass studs tactie pavement

Scale @ A1: 1:100

3T EALE. i et sy ot o s s e

NOTES:

BIEEE

H g abed

EIECE

i
H

SEEDY

Architects

stal
LBC Application

LNER

LONBON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob titie
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

crawing tite
Proposed Floor Finishes

s00 5062005

o 5062008

scale [paper siza'
Acindicaed 21

Frojecinc. |Type |Sead drawing no.
3295 1& A-DWG-GF-102 AD5




Existing Elevations

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Ground Level

Exizting canopy o
remaved

0

External East Flevation
1100

e Ground Level e ‘Ground Level
0 0

External North Elevation External South Elevation
1100 1:100

e Ground Lew
0

Internal West Elevation.

Seale @ AT 1:100

1:100 :

®

NOTES:

1. Extiating bolards to be removed.

2. Exieting kerbe and eurfacing o be removed.
3. Removal of exicting sesting and signage

4. Removal of all advertising poster cases and putto
storage

5. Exiating poat box 1o be relocated extemaly to the.
building to be picked up by the York Staion Galeway
schems.

6. Remoual and recovery of existing CIS screens

7. Luggage trolleys to be relocated, location TBG

bed

E—:

205 [rom
S T

U6 o

A M‘a‘
i

SEE Y

Architects

Pamnage Chumbar 3 Parmesnge; Marchasie M3 3401 0161 522 5750

stalue
LBC Application

LNER

LONDON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAT

Iob fite
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

‘

[———
Existing Elevations

Pu 0317200

o oso1/20

scale paper size
1:100 I

Projectno. | Typs | Sesd dmwing no. Rev.
3295 A A-DWG- E-401 A2




Proposed Elevations

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Back Lit Signage

e
Froposed ni Tughened
Lot Glared Pane
ahove exatng tmer s
rame windiows- &
8
&
Replacementof
existing glazing with ]
ok i
Lo Glasa zofealle
&
Prosed Trnber rame wciown Provened o - Provased TemberFrame Provooed Panet Prononed TaberFrame st Teber Frame windoun
e P ey o v e s wih e e wal S vosommnign —/ wnGows,pani m eieacie | Glass S Doors— windows,pani  mbracie s i prbeac
o neriage ol 5 g i oy o sonia lohrtoge e or s o stage s o el ol ghaca
Tougnence Lameatea Giasa o, 2 esotrg s, 2 eistg wih repaced va Tougnened
. Toughaned Lamnsed Glss- Toughenes Lamaie Gisa rmditiin
Proposed East Elevation
1:100
Propoged 150x100mm Proposed 150¢100mm
ateel frame to support | frame to support
curtain walling (Az per curtain walling (A3 per
Bomb Blast Assessment) Bomb Blast Aszesament
Back Litsignage Back Lit Signage
Propoced Glass ] Froposed 160@0mm & Proposed Glsss
Sliding Door = posed 160x80mm steel oteelrame to cupport | Siiding Boor
frame to support curtan curtzin waling (A3 per Fixed Glass Panel
Fixed Giase Pane! walling (A per Bomb Biast Bomb Blast Asasaament) ——
I Proposet o §
poeed Infill Glazing Panel ————————
Glazing Panel
a3 N [ 13 2390 108 |
Proposed North Elevation Proposed South Elevation
1:100 1:100

@ Proposed Internal West Elevation
4

100

Scale @ A1:1:100

©

S e e e

NOTES:
Q
D
a
o

= :

= ‘|sm &= |b!

P Hakar | D ] ==

SEEDY

Architects

Prcsonncn Dhmmbar 3 Pamcae, archasir I3 34170161 532 5750

staun
LBC Application

LNER

LOKDON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob title
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Locaion

drmuing it
Proposed Elevations

author [cate

E 15087202

checker date

as [15i05/2025

1:100

Project no. Rev.
3295 405




P —

NOTES:

Proposed Sections
Internal

Brand signage

Section A-A

1:100
S .
|
g
|
5 (2 U
Rt = . 3
Beech Gladdi ‘
2 g 2 Beech Cickting (@)
s ’ g g D
. d 2 i | L e (J
Erand signage— Wenierizions ot 350mm — Maniestabons st 350 " sgrage el N =)
and 1500mm high . ‘and 1300mm high :wo-—n-n-a_ & |_-<
. Section C-C ool
Section B-B 1100
1:100 Y
Architects

sishin
LBC Application

- LNER

LANDEN NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

iob title

STATIONTANE YORK STATION PORTICO
| ENHANCEMENT
. ) —————s z
% g P
| | L : L __| || |_|
i1 Y otrd b r \ehrd b rming e
Proposed Sections

e Ground Lev
0 Lt -

Manifeataions at 950mm

\ 8
Q‘ CITY OF 500 g _

i
B

Section D-D

1:100
scals papar aize
Scale @ A1:1:100 Az ndessed 21
Project no. Seed drawing no. Rev.
| e =) 3295 A-DWG-5-301 A0S

COUNCIL

&)




Proposed

Glazing 3D-

Visuals

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

i lmu‘

Proposed Timber Frame windows, as exisfing.
‘painted in anthracite grey or simiar to heritage
‘colour, with Toughened Laminated Glase.

(1) Glazed Panel Option_3D View A

(2) Glazed Panel Option_3D View B

D0 MG SCALE Lo e sy ot o e bk

NOTES:

o — ) =]
— e e r——

%4429 abed

= =t =

ey
= [ e e
[esy

gﬂ?ﬂﬂ

‘P

N

RHS structural support
?' 21 N H
S
= ‘\\\\\\\““‘

Intemal glase panel
behind exiofing balustrade

Glazed Panel Option Floor Plan

@ Section DD through Main East Elevation 200

1:50

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

Scale @ A1:1:200

SEEDY

Architects

Parmanege Charbar. 3 Possarge, Manchasir 3 W - 0161 822 750

statua
LBC Application

LNER

LONDTN NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob title
'YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Location

drawing tte
Proposed Glazed Panel

author
En

o

scale

Paper size
2z ndcsed 21

Project no. |Type |Seed Rev.
3295 A A-DWG-GF-103 A0S

1




Proposed Retall
Pods 3D -
Visuals

%

CITY OF

YT)R&(

COUNCIL

]
C T T T T T T T T T T T TWT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 7T

R

e e e = e €

T

[
T
I‘\
[
T
I‘\
I‘\
I
5
H
=>
2‘
o
]
I‘\
[T
I‘J
I‘\
[
T
T
T
I‘\
I
I‘J
P I I
13 VA N\ \ N |

- angiqhy| NN N SR Bttty oot R = it

e e e R e ]
ittt ettt tat el etatul b0t anscts et e ettt tals
== »";, ;’I ~ =4 = ——— w‘ ——_,—_|

@ Proposed Retail Pods Location

1:100

D) k-

{8) Proposed Retail Pods Location_3D View C
City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023 T

i 2

\“\m—r“ “.Il.'ll" =

Proposed access.
‘and Glass Panel Siiding Door

Proposed glass panel aligned
with interal wall

Scale @ A1 1:100

20T SCALE Unn s e o Gt 0 oo s o

NOTES:

e
SEE DY

Architects

Parsonsce Chambmr. 3 Parsomnon, Manchase U3 W - 0161 5225750

status.
LBC Application

LNER

LONDGN NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob title
'YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Locaion

| drawing file
Proposed Retail Pods

‘author [date
En 15087202

‘checker date

o 150672023

scale paper siza

1:100 a1

Projectno. |Type |Seed no. Rev.
3295 é A-DWG-GF-104 A0S




Proposed Cross
Sections - East

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[
I

g =

1:20

@ Proposed Main Entrance Floor Plan

Propaged Infil Toughened
Laminaied Glazed Panel above:

7

‘exioting timber

Proposed Timber Frame windows, a2
‘exigiing, painted in anihracite grey or
similar fo heritage colour, with Toughened
Lamingled Glace

ililli

il

HHE T

1217

n

1]

1870

|-
-
e | ! ]
— =5
= — al
Glazed Lo
g
&
Tapping rail on side
mmx
B

5697

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023 () Main Enirance Section

G abed

EW@
EQR

[ -y >

SEEDY

Architects

Parmenacn Charier, 3 Parscanon, Harchese M3 34~ 0161 522 750

stal
LBC Application

LNER

LONBON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

ob titie
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

crawing tite
Proposed East Entrance

oA 5062005

o 5062008

scale [paper siza
120 21

Projectnc. |Type |Saed drawing no. Fev.
3295 20 A-DWG-5-303 Ap2




Proposed Cross

Sections North and

South

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

@

ARERERERSaennt I s

&

[ Il ieateateee

oo,

T
Stainless steel
= i
8
g 1 v ooe gapeen
© o [l ing rail on side
e
[T T
% § § Matt well
] L JbuH g doors.
AT ‘H
e F— fixed side panel
e nmmu i
ot i
‘ .WHHH
i
-
to form door goalpost
8

Proposed Floor Plan - North entrance

v City of York

North Gable Section

1109

u
o form dog

Verscal Steel Mulior

RHS 1

3490

G

1w

ouncil Planning Committee Meeting - 9

]

Proposed Floor Plan - South entrance

Ndvember 2023

©
o e e b i
% NOTES:
o
T %
T
I [
=T -U
§ Q

= «Q

1]

FEoiemememete @
I T T T T T 71 ol
e e e s —

il S —— — ol
I ‘\‘I\‘Iﬂ‘l‘\‘\ e
: e T e e _,m _.«mwm EE:; =
B B e At s B ==
r\‘\‘l\”l‘\‘l‘\‘\ SEEDY
; s e K e e Architects
IT I T [ columns.
& T : | : T : | : \I I |
[T 1T I I I I
‘ Hd I T T T T slatue
- I "l T I T I T I T I LBC Application
LI I o T

i |'\‘|‘\‘|‘“’\“"\

1] L S S

1] I s s s B | I R

- I A — T oo

N —
= :a_v_l_'_x_v_l_'_t_;_p
] S e o — LOMBON MORTH EASTERN R AILWAY
- T T [ [ [ 1
oo e
— L L L I . |YORK STATION PORTICO
- T F T T fedpael_ ENHANCEMENT
e —————
Locaton
il
;s T pr——"
Proposed North and South
ot wed entrances
P
I Sz
ke [ame
& o
scale paper size
. = o
SOUth Gable SeCtlon Projectno. | Type | Seed drawing no. Rev.

1:20

3205 2 i A-DWG-S-302 Ap2




©

DT SEALE om A v . ol e e o drarr i

NOTES:
E Spalled, weathered and frachused damaged Genera
Mhb?'ﬁﬁ"\:dbvﬂmmﬂﬂé:'"ﬂ"‘ﬂ 1. The Contractor shall review all areaz of masonry and

rep!

Restoration

reclaimed brickwork to maich existing ‘company and make due allowance for the fype and
. . Spalld, weatherec an fracre damagect ot o epeis neeeoanny
Fast Elevation. sionewor o be repared by culing out |
—_ v damaet omeont. Fagiosimert | 2. All Porben remecias o take cogricance ofhe
1:200 ‘stonework o be same matenal as onginal and phased approach to the works to minimise disnuption to

shaped to match exieing features - New copera | the e operational stafion
1o be inatalled to parapet.

Mizzing Brick to be repairedireplaced with Restorston Warke
estoration

reclaimed brickwork to match existe
e o o mateh @4zing Existing Windows: All existing window frames to be
m o allow new paintin Antracite Grey

Stonework fa be taken 2 GS5 o ry and defemine
1o be carshully removed nd replaced with maich rasiment
mteral and shaped io maich exiating fesures. | saals) seslant o glazing. Exiting glass panes fo be
Raimwater Goods 1o b repaired prior 1o replaced with houghened lsminsied glazing
preparation and repainting
Fsiater Gooda: Al simwaler goods fo be repaired a=
[l . | requiren prepered n ©
match orgnal esign. {0 be confined. Repais are
Debris Build Up and Vegetation growth fo be icensifec on. elevation crawinga. Ay ciher
removed and sionework cleaned
Ganopy sructure to be removed and
. to match oviging Allbuiicing elevaions to be cleaned
design wsing siear cleaning (DOFF) o remove loose scilng,
T T ‘%
T

T iyl S s
AR ARRAA I = e et ot v o e o
Bwecdshontdainipotodese
: S I, s ot e
7 IS I ] 0] e e o T
i 2 bt

All imber windows fo be repaired Repointina: All brickwork and stonework 1o be:
== ‘and repainted mid-grey repoinied, ue to significant moriar loes throughout
hand i

worka
for effeciive resolution of the repair

A

e
T,
=
==

E using heritage mertar iype.

Extemal Cancpy Removal: Canopy siuciure fo be

T o o | ‘accordance with best conservalion pracice

% Recundant Cables: All edundant cablez to be removed,
o 2 ‘and retained cables fo be installec in a fidy manner 2=
2 - CDMWaming C3: ‘approved by the Architect

Demoiition and removal of

canopy for assessment of Pigeon Spikes: Al he existing pigeon spikes to be

the siructure and any renewed and include new one's on top of the new East
tmporary glazed enirance.

propping

Roof: Repaire as required, and repainiing of einuciure
‘and mber boarding throughou in colour to match
exieling.

Floof Drainage: Glearing of debriz and repairz o

e Ground Level membrane and outets as required
0

Existing Adverfising Posters: To be removed fo storage.

9G abed

External East Renovation Elevation A

1:50

E'&‘i‘"ﬁ
FQBE

N A | Remtsa

Pasennge Chabers, 2 Paresace, Haechmsier I3 - 161 322 5750

stabue
LBC Application

S T

‘ \‘I‘\‘I‘\WI‘\‘I‘\ [

S

LNER

LONDON NORTH EASTERN RAILYAY

Al mber windows to be repared
‘ | and repainted mid-grey lob e
=1 YORK STATION PORTICO

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I i
I T " Tl Bus fimeiable coreen obe ENHANCEMENT

I ‘\
«canopy for assessment of o = o
e i s sty P
for tr

mporary P ) "
propping drauing fitle

External East Restoration
Elevations

CITY OF

date
eﬁrﬁmﬂLeﬁd o e owms
o checer | date
o owmnaes
acale paper size
Scale @ A1:1:50 As indicased e
Projectno. | Type |Seed no.

. External East Renovation Elevation B ! = -1 B e [ADAG e |
COUNCIL

1:50




®

0 505 Lnm et s s G 1 ot s s e

NOTES:

Generai

Spalled, weathered and fractured damaged

— JE— e W [ AR
reciaimed brickwork tomaich mstng. Sy e i o o B e 0
estoration TEEEEEE P i ey
Ry R
- i stonewerk to be same material a2 original and ;::::amﬁg;:ﬂ*w”"m clenption to
haped fo maich exigting features - New copers.
evations — v -
Mizzing o be iredi/repl; with rafion Werke:
reciaimed brickwork to maich existing. Exieling Windows: All exisling window frames io be
etripped back to allow new paint in Anthracite-Grey
e [ oo e ot e
the ongmnal paint colour), treaiment and replacement of
External Nort it Sy e s, | e e
u T e

Rainwater Goods to be repaired prior to

S ooy, preparalion and repainting. Rainuialer Goods: All rainwaler goods fe be repaired ag
S Ssmmssamsmansssas: required, prepared and repainted n herflage colour to
(e Dmmwmmmmmﬁw@ mlch ol desion o be confimed. epai ar2
‘on elevation drawinga. Any other
Debris Buld Up and Vegetalion arowth to be ceecifonuen e curing works should be raiced
removed and stonework cleaned. for effectve reoiution of the repar.

Ganopy sinucture o be removed and

Al building elevations
(DOFF)

o] =
cals and algae. plant growth and bilogia mater
/‘__\\ Gleaning of sall | forsscence debris buid up and
et my e e e f s
Drckwork.stonework or missina mortar
further repaire may be required once hEEﬂWﬂhw\s
are caried out.

Repainiing: All brickwork and stonework o be.
repointed, due fo significant mortar loss throughout
Exisiing mortar io be raked out by hand and reponted
using heritage mortar type.

External Canopy Remeval: Canopy structure o be-
remaved. Evioing fings fo be carstuly removed and
underhying masonry/brickwork made qood in
accordance with beat conservation practce

Ground Level 3
e_ e i - — and retained cablec fo be installed n a fdy manner as
approved by the Archizct

Pigeon Spkes: All the exisfing pigeon spkes fo be.
renewed and nclude new one's on top of the new East
glazed entrance.

R Remas s e s it s
B i ot oy
. . s
External North Renovation Elevation N
oot Dsinage: Gieaing o debris and reprs
1:560 membrane and outiets a8 requined.

Exigiing Adverfieing Posters: To be removed io siors

NN

/S eﬁed

il

= SEEDY

Architects

Pamnage Chumbar 3 Parmesnge; Marchasie M3 3401 0161 522 5750

stalue
LBC Application

= NER

LONDON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAT

lob tite:
== YORK STATION PORTICO
= ENHANCEMENT

Locaion

Ground Level ;
@ 0 Jrem——

External South & North Restoration

Elevations
CITY OF
‘author | date
: . A s
External South Renovation Elevation e [dme
1:50 e —paparuam
Scale @ A1: 1:30 Az ndcated a1
Projectno. | Type |Sssd drawing no. Rev.
L o 3295 A A-DWG- E-402 AD2

COUNCIL




Restoration
Elevations —
Internal East

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Spalled, westhered and frachured damaged
brickwork to be repared by cutting out  removing
and mortar

©

P RIS p—

NOTES:

&
1. The Coniractor shall review all areas of mazonry and
e — with

pen ke ciue alowance for the-type and

2. All Portic remedials o take cognisance of the:

Restoration Works:

q Al be
aitripped back 1o allow new pat in Anthracte-Grey
i @S5ty i

inal pir tregiment
sesle / sealant to glazing. Exisling glase panes fo be
replaced with houghened laminated glazing.

Rainwater Goods: All rinwater goods to be repared aa
required, prepared and repainted in heritsge colour 1o
match original decign, fo be confimed. Repars are
identified on elevason draunaz. Any other

for effective resolution of the repair

Spalled, weathered
- etonewerk to be repaired by cutting out /.
Internal East Elevation. remaving damaged sioneor. Feplacement
; i
1:200 shapedto maich
o0 et 0 poropet
I:‘ Missing Brick to be repairadirepiaced wih
E Missing stonework to be repairedireplaced.

i Stonework.
to be carefully removed and replaced with maich
mctod v speet 1 i g fetres
Rainwater Goods to be repaired prior fo
preparation and repainting.

D Salieffioreecence to be removed via cleaning.
E Debrie Build Up and Vegetation growlh to be
b
Ganopy siucire o be remaned and
match crginal
i
Spaling to undarsids
of arch to be rapaied
TEE
=
s & seax I I || Sssasassy I I [ oo ] I e 1 I I I I
'CDM Warning C3- L] J<— Fracture 1o stonework on side I:l
\ Demolition and removal of of column |=|
| for assassmant of =]
tha structura and any |
requiraments for Bmporary o imiled suvey information in this area, due of columns
i I - propping| taxi kiosk blocking access D T P
=1 T T
1 [ [==N
GGW“"C‘L”E
0
-Algae growth around fap to
be cleaned
Internal East Renovation Elevation A
1:50
] | 1 1
T ] r
3 =
ey s T N
‘Clock mechanism =7
housing and platiorm to. ===
be clas Spalling to undorside
redecorated as required. arch to ba repaired
e —
gap frama to
be rapairad
| = 10mm gap around window frame to
] [ 1 T ] T f == Eorrorer tm rpa
COM Warning Ca: L I ]
Demoalition and removal of pane fo be
canopy for assessment of
the structum and any
requrements for temporary B e e e e i | e e e i e s s e s e o =
Propping i ToT
;’ Ground Level ] E =
o Downpipa opaning (iksly caused by blockage)
«downpipe to be unblocked and repaired prior to
preparation and rapainting
Seae @ 41: 150
@ Internal East Renovation Elevation B . y
- =N

150 City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

DOFF) o
zalts and algae, plant growth and biological mater.
Gleaning of salt  eforescence debris buld up and
vegetation may reeult in further areas of damaged
brickwork, stonework or migsing mortar. Therefore:
further repaire may be required once theee operations.
are caried out.

Repointing: All brickwork and stonework to be:
repointed. cue to signiicant mortar loss thioughout
Existing mortar to be raked out by hand and repainted
using hertage martar type.

Extemal Canopy Removal: Canopy etucture to be
removed Existing foings to be carefuly removed and
underting masonry/richwark made good
‘accordance wih best consenvalion practice.

A
and retained cablea to be instalied in a tidy manner a8
‘approved by the Architect.

Figeon Spikes: Al he existing pigeon spikes io be
renewed and inctude new one's on lop of the new E-
glazed enfrance.

‘and timber boarding throughout in colour to match

Roof: Repairs s required, and repaining of structur m
exiatn

E—— (|
et e

Exisfing Adverlising Posters: To be removed fo stor:

8G °

= i = =
Jan -2 o CamE
[Fe B CamES

= o | s

SEEDY

Architects

Panage Chambnrm 3 Parcnge, Mancheter 3 3408 - 016 025750

statun
LBC Application

NER

NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

Iob ttle
YORK STATION PORTICO

ENHANCEMENT

Locabon

drawing e

Internal East Restoration
Elevations

‘author date

w o4z

checher | ate

o oz

acale papar size
e 1

Frojectn. |Type |Seed drawing no. Rev.
3295 ﬁ A-DWG- E-406 Ap2




©

P RIS p—

NOTES:

‘Spafied. weathered and fractured damaged
brickwork 1o be repaired by cuting out / removng
‘mortar and replacing wih

General
1. The Coniractor shall review all areas of mascnry and
stonework repairs with a specialit heritage repair

ipany and make due allowance for the type and

BN
A-DWG F-40!

‘Spalled, weathered and

5 .
Internal West Elevation
e ey

Restoration
Elevations — =T SERCET e

Mizsing Brick o be repaired/replaced with

reclaimed brickwork to maich exigting, Restoration Werke:
Exicfing Windows: All existing window frames io be

Internal West e
S

materisl and shaped to match exisfing festires. | 5oy f seaiant o aiazing. Existing alass panes to be

Rainwaer Goods lo be repaired prics fo replaced with houghened laminated glazing.
preparation and repainting
Rainuater Goods: All minwaler goods to be repaired 2z
D Salljeflorescence io be removed via cleaning reqired, prepared and repaintad in heritage colour to
maich original desian, to be confimned. Repare are
Debriz Build Up and enthed ey cther

removed and sionework clesned.

Ganopy structure to be removed and for effective regolution of the repair.
‘stonework brickwork repaired o mateh original
dewign.

T (DOFF) fo o iing,
ST iy ] i s seam ceanna (BOFF) i remore oces ol
frretviepeyeri iyttt
Ve e e o e f et
e, Sonamor or oo mori Tersere

repar requ aper
e camed out

— Repointing: All rickwork and stonework fo be
5 repeinied, due fo signiicant mortar oss.roughout
e e e e e e e e e e e e e s I e —_— 7 w 17 Exisiing martar to be raked cut by hand and repoinied
== msasssssasssssasssansssas: S ESema s s Eemsaa s s s ae s maaa: e “?‘?‘?‘?‘?'?/:\ bt
External Canopy Remaval: Canopy structure to be.
o Ex 5 o
7 underhing masennyErcknerk made good 1
T | ] & T ce with best conservaiion praciice.
— & = g
e & H = H M .
& = | = U and retained cables o be installed in a fidy manner as.
£ = £ N = I P approved by the Archtect
=] = = s ~ -
aEararara: {iemamam: e ummama N =/ Nl [ Pigeon Spikes: All he exiotng piceon opikes 1o be
e e e em=ama=a ea=aa=sa: esa==maea: e rencwed and include new ones on top of the new East

glazed enfrance.
~ - N
N Roof: Repairs: a2 required, and repainting of siuciure
s ‘and timber boarding throughout in colcur to maich U

[===|! Al exieting.

Ground Level

Roof Drainage: Clearing of debriz and repaire fo
membrane and outiels az required.

Exicling Adverlsing Pasters: To be removed io m(Q

Fracturad brickwork to ba rapaired

Internal West Renovation Elevation A
1:50

o —
i SEE Y

Architects

T ENE Delecive drainaga to be repaired

|d Fareerage Charioer, 3 Farscange, Manchaster 143 2701 - 0161 022 5750

T stotun
e LBC Application

=

e L OMDON NORTH EASTERN [A LAY

\
/

— £
Fracure b sione Inel ] % “ ‘ Y™
= YORK STATION PORTICO
o . g g B S [ b ENHANCEMENT
S B e oo o o el Vet Restosion
CITY OF —— = == Flevatons
& - i
. = =
Internal West Renovation Elevation B ) Priecine, |Toe | Sedarmra e, |
1:50 . N . . . . L o T 3295 g A-DWG-E-405 Ap2
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Restoration
Elevations —
Internal North and
South

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

e B
. = = <
L i i
= = =

e ound Level
0

Internal North Renovation Elevation
1:50

L&Lru‘p”m :I.Ih.:‘.:.:m S=s=sea=ass: ”P“\ﬁ'l:lll:l:
Sl s i

HE

e Ground Level
]

Internal South Renovation Elevation
150

Spalied, and fractured damaged
brickwork io be repaired by cuting out  removing
and mortar

©

P RIS p—

NOTES:

General
1. The Centractor shall review sll arese of masonry and
stonewerk with

reclaimed brickwork o maich existing.

company and make dus alowance for the fype and
extent of

o

E Spalled. westhered and
stonework fo be repaired by cuting out
removing damaged stonework. Replacement 2. Al Portico remeciae to take coanisance of the
jnal and phased appr
chaped to maich copers

1o be installed fo parapet
Wissing Brick io be taced wih
reciamed brickwork to match existing

Wissing stonework to be repairecireplaced,
Stonework

Restoration Worka:
Exiefing Windowe: All exieting window frames fo be
back o alow new paint in Anfhracite-Grey

1o be carefully removed and replaced with maich
maferial and shaped to maich existing fesiures
Raimwater Gooda to be repaired prior i
preparation and repainting

D Saltjeffloreccence fo be removed via dleaning,

taken a2t GSS o ry and determine
the onginal paint colou), realment and replacement of
sesle / seslant o glazing. Exicing glass panes o be.
replaced with thoughened laminaled glazing

Raimvater Goods: All ainwater goods io be repained a2
required, prepared and repainted in heriiage colour i
maich orignal design. 1o be confimed. Repairz are

E Debrig Build Up and tobe
ved

drawings. Any other
Guring works should be raised

Ganopy shuciure io be removed and
tomatch original

for efieciive resohufion of the repair.

design

diagonal fracturo which
tapers in thickness, no cracking of tha

repair suggesting to re-point the brickwork.

Scale @ A1: 150

ANl buiding
using steam cleaning (DGFF) 1o remove loose soiling
salts and sigse. plant arowth and bioicaical matter
Cleaning of salt / efioreecence debrie buid up and

vegetator et
brickwrk, sfonework or mizsing mortar. Therelore
further repairs may be requirad once theoe operations
are.camied out

Repainting: Al brickwork and stonework to be
repoinied, du fo significant mortar loes hroughout.
Exiefing mortar to be raked out by hand and repointed
using heritage moriar type.

Exismal Ganopy Removal: Canopy sirucure o be
removed. Existing fiings to be caretuly removed and
underlyng mazonry/brickwork made good in
accordance with best conservation practice.

and retained cablec to be inatalled in a fidy manner as
approved by the Archiisct

Pigeon Spikes: All the existing pigeon spes io be
renewed and include new ane's on fop of the new E
glazed enrance.

Foof: Repairs a2 required, and repainiing of shuctur m

and fimber boarding throughout in colour ko maeh
evising.

membrane and outlets as required.

[ — ()

Exiating Advertising Posters: To be removed fo stor:

09

=t
SEEDY

Architects

% ||
[5[8]

i
i

Panage Chambnrm 3 Parcnge, Mancheter 3 3408 - 016 025750

statun
LBC Application

LNER

LOMDON NORTH EASTERN RAILWAY

Iob ttle
YORK STATION PORTICO
ENHANCEMENT

Locaion

drawing e
Internal South & North Restoration
Elevations

w oo1/2008

o ovorizes

scale paper sizs
A ncicated a1

Projectn. |Type | Seed drawing no. Rev.
3295 A A-DWG-E-403 Ap2




i N - ] Norbes:
x / : it
1 Iy Phaee 1 - YBF-ARP-O0-XX-DR-CH-1100
Phsee 2 - YBF-ARP-O0-XX-DR-CH-1101
Plask 3 - YBF-ARP-00-0K-DRCH-
(73
Approved York " e
Station Gateway
Site Plan
Raloomtsd n ~
rdnmepetialbation Vi
LEC.YRICOCS for Mull cetalle. ’!
Raltway Stetion R,
Bus layiry for Eno. buses >
and i, bus shatiers.
Ralocated station
ot R ks NSRS
rmime ey R
e — " " "‘““/\ D
rton. o, o e e 7 W Jiviems] & [ ow | ow
1o Tea Room Squire, S
\ o
1.5m wicla or-cmTing ey
/ = o)

T Twm] @ [ [ (]
o Twws] o [ox [ v ()

1mwe] JT oW RE

g
o be retained.

7 Fiou ! Husion) Houss,
Ascee io NCP B Jowane] = [ ow [ me
o park s [ for Bro. bu
e riabad. e b
/ A [mmme] €6 | B | oW
— Propossd looation of the /
York Rl Band Rt Resitert parking to ba raioasied raiocaiad George Siaphensan Flarming
by b dectolhed, thin the parking zona on Tot Houmm cycle aiors.
‘Grusn cr Micklegals. Im wide bvo-way Re | e | W | v | e
Tourist an long dstanas : weipogind cythé e,
] busas are i uss laybys:
8 o oar park loop mad. e i~ i .
& 15 maioh wdating [owise raloariad Cacrge Staphan
= wll alang Cussn Strear. Housa bin som. AT et R W,
— / . 78 Can ot Low, OGP
TuTE B P ORI T
; [ty
2o, tmd bays, (mblet ! \ / =
e oy - byl / City of York Coundil
9 . . { thim planning mppiicrion).
5 s
4 ]
_ =4 : foe Yark Station Frontage
T
10 { General Arrangemeant
. / | Phase 3
< ] /1| Final Schame
N CITY OF _ S 1y ‘
— . 5 [ A 1000
: / S oM.y
! . g ™ Al . 52— Fitor irbmaton
" . T -
d f /e 257003 H
YUNQ , YSF-ARP-04-XX-DR-CH-1005
g COUNCIL /M - N

L <



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63 Agenda Item 4b
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 9 November 2023 Ward:  Heworth Without

Team: East Area Parish: Heworth Planning Panel

Reference: 23/01514/FULM

Application at: Hempland Cp School Whitby Avenue York YO31 1ET

For: Erection of two storey school building with associated parking,
play space and landscaping, and demolition of existing school
buildings

By: ISG Construction Ltd On Behalf Of Dept For Education

Application Type: Major Full Application

Target Date: 14 November 2023

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL AND APPLICATION SITE

1.1. Planning permission is sought for the erection of a two-storey school building
with associated parking, play space, landscaping and demolition of the existing
school buildings.

1.2. The application site comprises of the existing Hempland Primary School site
located within the Heworth Without Ward area of York. Access to the site is provided
via Whitby Avenue to the North of the site. The application site extends to
approximately 2.3 hectares comprising of a mix of existing school buildings, areas of
soft and hard landscaping and playing fields. The site is enclosed to its North and
Eastern sides by existing residential properties. The land to the South and West
consists of playing fields, allotments and Tang Hall Beck separation distances from
the existing school building to neighbouring residential properties in these directions
range from 150m-300m.

1.3. The proposals will provide a gross internal floor space of approximately
2,198m?2. This would be a reduction of approximately 1,212m? when compared to
the existing building. In total 12.no additional vehicle parking spaces are to be
provided (2.no additional disability spaces, 10.no additional general spaces). The
existing cycle parking capacity of 80.no will be retained.

1.4. The proposed development will be a renewal and replacement of existing
facilities. The proposals will not increase the overall capacity at the school. The

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 64

existing two form entry primary school will be maintained; comprising of a roll of 420
pupils and 50 members of staff. The catchment area for the school broadly covers
the Heworth Without Ward area.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.1. The National Planning Policy Framework (“NPPF”) as revised in September
2023 sets out the government’s planning policies for England and how these are
expected to be applied.

2.2. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan. For the
purposes of assessing and determining the proposals contained within this
application the application is not located within a defined Neighbourhood Plan Area.
Nor would the site be regarded as laying within the general extent of the Green Belt.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.4. The Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 was submitted for examination on 25™
May 2018. It has now been subject to full examination. Modifications were consulted
on in February 2023 following full examination. It is expected the plan will be
adopted in late 2023. The draft policies can be afforded weight in accordance with
paragraph 48 of the NPPF.

2.5. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:

DP2 — Sustainable Development

DP3 — Sustainable Communities

SS1 - Delivering Sustainable Growth for York

ED6 — Preschool, Primary and Secondary Education

ED8 — Community Access to Sports and Cultural Facilities on Education Sites

D1 — Place Making

D2 — Landscape and Setting

GI2 — Biodiversity and Access to Nature

Gl4 — Trees and Hedgerows

GI5 — Protection of Open Space and Playing Fields

CC1 — Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage

CC2 — Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 65

ENV1 — Air Quality

ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality

ENV3 — Land Contamination

ENV4 — Flood Risk

ENV5 — Sustainable Drainage

T1 — Sustainable Access

T7 — Minimising and Accommodating Generated Trips

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

3.1. Public Protection: No objections raised but recommended conditions relating
to plant and machinery to be installed in the development, a condition to deal with
unexpected land contamination and a condition to secure the recommendations
contained within the submitted ventilation and extraction assessment and
Construction Environmental Management Plan.

3.2. Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) — Drainage: No objections raised but
recommends conditions.

3.3. Ecology: No objections raised, based on the information provided,
recommends conditions relating to Bats, provision of a Landscape Ecological
Management Plan with Biodiversity Net Gain, and that development proceeds in
accordance with the submitted Construction Environmental Management Plan and
Lighting Plan.

3.4. Landscape Architect: No comments have been received at the time of
drafting this report.

3.5. Safer York Partnership (North Yorkshire Police): No objections raised. The
proposals are considered to accord with the core principles and design objectives
set out in the NPPF in respect of developments creating safe and accessible
environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine
quality of life or community cohesion.

3.6. Education: No comments have been received at the time of drafting this
report.

3.7. Planning Policy: No objections raised noting the redevelopment of Hempland
School is supported in principle by policies ED6 and GI5 of the Draft Local Plan

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 66

2018. The Carbon Reduction team should be consulted in respect of policies CC2
and CC3.

3.8. Highways: No objections subject to conditions.
3.9. Carbon Reduction Team: No objections raised but recommend conditions.

EXTERNAL
3.10. Heworth Planning Panel: No comments have been received at the time of
drafting this report.

3.11. Sport England: No objections raised subject to conditions which would
secure that the replacement sports pitches are of an acceptable quality and are not
at undue risk of failing. A condition is also requested to secure a Community Use
Scheme

3.12. Environment Agency: No comments have been received at the time of
drafting this report.

3.13. Yorkshire Water: No comments have been received at the time of drafting
this report.

3.14. Foss Internal Drainage Board: No objections raised but recommend
conditions.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1. The application has been advertised via Neighbour Notification Letter, Site
Notice and Local Press Notice. A summary of the responses received is provided
below.

4.2. A total of 1no comment of objection has been received relating to the
following:

- Trees are proposed to be removed. | do not see the need for this at all. Trees
are being planted for the good of the planet. My property looks onto the
playground and these trees would screen my view of the new school. They are
healthy trees.

4.3. A total of 7.no comments of representation, neither objecting nor supporting
the proposals were received, the comments received are summarised as follows:

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 67

- Tree and Hedge works have already taken place at the site including cutting
down a Hawthorne hedge to the rear of No.68 Whitby Avenue. This tree is
listed on the submitted plans as ‘tree group for retention’. The removal of trees
such as this is a concern.

- Will the plans include a ‘drop off’ point whereby vehicles will enter the property
rather than parking across residents driveways on Whitby Avenue.

- The use of Whitby Avenue for all construction and demolition vehicles and
materials whilst the school is occupied should be re-considered. Hempland
Lane to the South West of the school should be used. This would minimise
conflict between construction works and the existing school, pupils and staff.

- The lack of information relating to the routing of lorries to the school is a
concern. Where will they park whilst waiting to access the site. As a parent of
a pupil we have been told one side of the vehicle access will be for pedestrian
access whilst the other will be boarded off and used as a contractors entrance.

- How long will construction last, HGVs need to be carefully managed.

5.0 APPRAISAL
Key Issues
5.1. The key issues are as follows:
- EIA Screening
- Principle of Development
- Highways and Access
- Design, Layout and Residential Amenity
- Public Protection
- Community Use, Facilities and Playing Fields
- Drainage & Flood Risk
- Ecology and Landscaping
- Sustainable design and construction

Environmental Impact Assessment Screening

5.2. The proposed development has been reviewed against The Town and Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The proposed
development would fall under Schedule 2 Part 10 Infrastructure Projects (b) Urban
Development Projects, including the construction of shopping centres and car parks,
sports stadium, leisure centres and multiplex cinemas. Schedule 2 outlines that EIA
Screening would be required if the area of the development exceeds 1 hectare.

5.3. Inthis particular case the site area extends to approximately 2.3 hectares.
This exceeds the 1-hectare threshold under which EIA screening is required. The
proposed development has been screened against the criteria set out within
Schedule 3 of the EIA Regulations. These criteria cover the characteristics of
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 68

development, location of development and the types and characteristics of the
potential impact.

5.4. Following this screening exercise whilst the defined thresholds for screening
the development have been exceeded. It is considered that given the overall nature
and scale of the development and Environmental Impact Assessment would not be
required in this case.

Principle of Development

5.5. The application site is in existing use as a Primary School. The school was
first established in the 1960s and has been extended and modernised on several
occasions since. The current format of buildings was opened in 1999 as a Local
Authority led school. In 2016 the school converted to an Academy.

5.6. The proposed development comprises of the erection of a replacement two
storey school building and the demolition of the existing school buildings. The
proposed replacement building would be built directly behind the existing. The
proposals would see the continuation of the existing established land use at the site.

5.7. Policy ED6 of the DLP 2018 seeks to secure the provision of modern
education facilities to meet identified needs. Policy ED6 goes on to state that, new
or enhanced education facilities will be permitted if they; are in locations that are
accessible by sustainable transport from the communities they are intending to
serve and not have a significant adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring
properties. There is also a requirement for sufficient and appropriate playing field
provision and that community access is provided.

5.8. Given that the site is already in active and established use as a school the
proposed development would not introduce a new land use to the area. As such the
proposals would not be expected to materially change the existing impact the site
has upon the immediate locality and the relationship it has to its immediate
neighbours would be broadly unchanged. Additionally, the proposals would not see
the overall capacity of the school increased. Therefore, it would not be anticipated
that the overall intensity with which the site is currently used would be materially
increased. The catchment area which the school serves is primarily focussed upon
the residential areas immediately around the existing school and then extends in a
North Easterly direction to the much less densely populated areas around Malton
Road.

5.9. As the proposals would not result in a material change in use of the land and

application site and that use of the site as school is already well established it is

considered that, in principle, the proposals would accord with the provisions of
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 69

Policy ED6 of the DLP 2018. Subject to all other material considerations being
considered acceptable.

Highways and Access

5.10. Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented
or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe.

5.11. Policy T1 of the DLP 2018 promotes sustainable access. Policy T1 states that
development will be supported where it minimises the need to travel and provides
safe, suitable ad attractive access for all transport users. It goes on to state that
developments will be required to demonstrate that there is a safe and appropriate
means of access to the wider highway network and safe and appropriate links to
local services and facilities.

5.12. The development will utilise the existing access from Whitby Avenue. The
pedestrian access at the Western boundary of the site will also be maintained. The
proposals comprise of the replacement of an existing facility. The development will
not result in the overall capacity of the school increasing. As such an intensification
in use of the site would not be expected.

5.13. The proposals would result in a net increase in overall vehicle parking at the
site with an additional 10.no spaces being provided and an additional 2.no disability
spaces. The existing cycle parking (including scooters) provision of 80.no will be
maintained. The design and layout of the site will allow for vehicular and pedestrian
access and movements to be segregated.

5.14. Within the third-party comments received a number of these have focused on
highways and traffic related matters. As with most school sites there can be issues
with an increase in traffic around the site at peak times such as school drop off and
pick ups. The school benefits from having a relatively compact catchment area
meaning that the community which it serves is perhaps more densely focused within
the immediate vicinity of the school. This provides greater opportunities for more
sustainable modes of transport such as walking, cycling or scooting to be the mode
of choice when pupils come to school. As such it is not considered conducive to the
development for measures such as designated drop off spaces or measures to be
provided within the site as it could be counterproductive insofar as encouraging
more pupils to travel to school via car. A further suggestion of construction access
being taken from Hempland Lane/Burholme Drive and accessing the site from the
south west, to avoid conflict with the existing school, has been discounted. This
would require significant upgrades being to the existing lane/track — solely for
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 70

construction. The junction onto Hempland Lane/Burnholme Drive is situated within a
dip with limited visibility. Construction movements via this route would likely cause
further issues and highways concerns. Particularly when access and movements
could be suitably managed through the use of planning conditions utilising existing
well established routes.

5.15. Access during the construction phase will be something that has to be
carefully managed, particularly given that the existing school must remain
operational throughout the construction phase. To this end the applicant has
submitted a Construction Environmental Management Plan. This, amongst other
matters, details how access to the site will be managed during the construction
phase including management of deliveries to avoid peak times at the site. Measures
also include establishing agreed access routes to the site for deliveries to minimise
disruption as far as practicable and sequencing of deliveries, so they arrive one at a
time. There are also designated holding points for vehicles to wait until they can
access the site.

5.16. The Councils Highways section have reviewed the development proposals
and the submitted information. They have raised no objections to the proposals but
do recommend a series of conditions.

5.17. Highways have confirmed that cycle parking on the whole is acceptable.
However, some of it appears to be inaccessible and the new enclosures are not
detailed (staff cycle parking, junior cycle parking). Therefore, a condition requiring
cycle parking details to be provided for approval is recommended. A condition
requiring the agreed parking provision to be laid out and provided before the
development is brought into first use.

5.18. Whilst the application has been submitted with a construction management
plan detailing how the construction phase would be managed and operated,
including how traffic to the site is to be routed. Highways have raised a series of
concerns with the detail and practicalities of what has been proposed. The plan
includes utilising a layby within the Vanguard development at Monks Cross — which
appears to be located within the Park and Ride carpark (land operated and
managed by First York as part of the Park and Ride contract). Highways consider a
layby on the A64 to be a preferable holding point.

5.19. The proposed route to the site for deliveries would see traffic leaving the A64

at Hopgrove Roundabout then travelling to Stockton Lane via Hopgrove Lane South.

This route is not supported by highways. It is not uncommon for Hopgrove Lane

South to encounter on street parking. This can often result in traffic leaving the

Malton Road having to wait before being able to pass the parked vehicles; this in
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 71

turn could lead to congestion at the Little Hopgrove and Hopgrove Roundabouts.
Highways have indicated that rather than utilising Hopgrove Lane South Malton
Road should be used.

5.20. Within the immediate vicinity of the site the use of Algarth Road is noted
however this also raises some concerns which will require some careful
management. These concerns relate to vehicle tracking and intervisibility at bends
particularly outside No0.33. In cases of poor intervisibility HGVs would need to
reverse to allow passing. There are single yellow lines in operation here however
these only operate during school times (and are potentially subject to change in the
future). Tracking demonstrates that on these bends on Algarth Road there would be
encroachment onto the opposing lane. This could necessitate large sections of the
road to be subject to Temporary Traffic Orders to exclude parked cars on these
bends. Highways have suggested using Ashley Park Road which is already a bus
route.

5.21. Access to the site will be via the existing access off Whitby Avenue. The
access is already segregated with railings enclosing the footway on both sides.
Highways have concerns with regard to overrun onto the footway and services on
the access junction and have requested mitigation. At present there is also some
contradictory information in respect of how movements of vehicles within the site will
be sequenced and managed with multiple positions being shown for the same site
cabin/gatehouse.

5.22. Highways have therefore recommended that a condition be attached to any
permission which secures the submission of a revised Construction Management
Plan which specifically covers highways matters such as routings and traffic
management. This includes slightly revised delivery restriction times as to those
proposed by the applicant within their submission. This is to account for a proposed
amendment to the existing traffic order which enforces the single yellow lines within
the vicinity of the site; amendments to which are currently being progressed by the
Highway Authority.

5.23. Overall, it is considered that the development proposals would, subject to the
conditions outlined within this section, allow for development to proceed in a
managed manner so as to minimise disruption to the surrounding highway network
as far as possible. The proposals would not give rise to any notable or sustained
highways safety concerns. The overall level of parking provision for both cycles and
motorised vehicles is considered acceptable.

Design, Layout and Residential Amenity

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 72

5.24. The proposed two storey building would be located centrally within the site.
The separation distances achieved to the residential properties situated on Whitby
Avenue would exceed 70m whilst the separation distance to properties on
Applecroft Road would exceed 40m. The closest neighbouring building to the
proposed development would be the existing community centre which would be
approximately 30m away to the southeast.

5.25. The proposed development would result in the separation distances between
the residential properties on Whitby Avenue and Applecroft Road generally being
enhanced in comparison to the existing situation, particularly those properties
toward the North side of the application site. This is achieved as a result of the
proposed form of the building being more uniform. At present the existing buildings
on site, whilst having some two storey elements, are generally single storey and
have a more sprawling footprint. The proposed replacement building would be of a
single uniform two storey height with a much more condensed, simplified footprint.
The general internal layout of the building will see the teaching spaces and ancillary
functions such as office space organised toward the outer edge of the building all
accessed from a central corridor. Ground floor teaching spaces will all benefit from
both internal and external points of access. The eastern end of the building will
contain two double height halls and a kitchen space at ground floor. The first floor
section above the kitchen there will be an external plant deck enclosed by a parapet
wall. All internal spaces will be well served by large sections of glazing. The overall
exterior design of the building is considered to be functional and would not result in
the introduction of an incongruous form into the landscape.

5.26. The proposed building would stand to a height of approximately 8.9m. The
submitted plans detail that the ground floor section of the building is to be
constructed from buff brick. The first-floor section is to be clad with non-combustible
aluminium cladding panels, the plans state that these would be mushroom colour.
Whilst an indication of the exterior materials and finishes have been provided no
precise details or specifications have been confirmed. As such in the event of
granting planning permission it would be appropriate to condition that details of
exterior materials and finishes be submitted to the LPA for approval before their use
in the development.

5.27. With regard to the exterior layout of the site the existing principal of a school
building located centrally within the site surrounded by areas of playing pitches and
areas of hardstanding would be retained. The existing areas of hardstanding utilised
as playgrounds toward the northwest corner would be retained. The existing car
parking area immediately to the East would also then become outdoor play/learning
space. Vehicle parking would be relocated to the north-eastern flank of the site. The
existing Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) situated on the South-eastern side of the
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 73

site will be retained. A garden area is to be provided between proposed parking area
and the MUGA. A portion of the existing playing pitches to the rear of the existing
school building will be lost due to the relocating of the school building within the site.
However, this loss would ultimately be compensated for by the provision of a new
playing pitch area situated in front of the new school building.

5.28. Historically the existing school building on the site was originally conceived as
being two schools. As a result, the school benefits from a doubling of some features
such as assembly halls and main entrances. Access and egress to the site is
controlled by electronically controlled gate at the main access off Whitby Avenue.
The proposed development would see a new inner secure boundary provided. This
would effectively segregate the access and parking areas from the remainder of the
school site. In operation this would mean that all traffic and visitors entering the site
are channelled toward the main reception area with access to the remainder of the
site restricted.

5.29. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would not give rise to
conditions which would unacceptably harm the residential amenity of neighbouring
properties. The design and location of the building is such that it would not give rise
to issues of overshadowing or overlooking. Nor would it have an overbearing impact
upon neighbouring properties. The proposals are also considered to accord with the
principles of designing a safe and accessible space, reducing the opportunities for
crime and disorder to occur. The proposals would therefore accord with policy D1 of
the DLP 2018.

Public Protection

5.30. Policy ENV2 of the DLP 2018 states that development will not be permitted
where future occupiers and existing communities would be subject to significant
adverse environmental impacts such as noise, vibration, odour, fumes/emissions,
dust and light pollution without effective mitigation measures.

5.31. Overall, it is not considered that the proposed development would, during its
operation, give rise to any significant undue impacts upon neighbouring properties.
The proposals by virtue of their design and layout would not be expected to give rise
to issues of overlooking, overshadowing or have an overbearing impact upon
neighbouring properties. Also, of note in this regard is that the proposals would not
result in the overall capacity of the school increasing. As such impacts arising from
the general intensity with which the site is used are not anticipated to change.

5.32. The proposals will necessitate the provision of various items of new external

plant and machinery; primarily related to the ventilation system utilised in the

building. Items such as these have the potential to give rise to noise disturbance
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 74

which could be detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring properties and land uses.
An acoustic report has been submitted in support of the proposals which clarifies the
maximum rated noise levels from the plant equipment to be installed. These details
have been reviewed by Public Protection who have not raised any objections to the
proposals in this regard. However, to ensure that the plant equipment to be installed
does not give rise to noise disturbance they have recommended that, in the event of
granting planning permission, a condition would be required for full details of all
plant and machinery to be installed or located on the premises to be submitted to,
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is
brought into first use. The condition will also, where it is considered necessary,
secure noise mitigation measures to protect the amenity of the area.

5.33. As with any construction project there is the potential for a degree of
disturbance to be caused particularly during the construction and demolition phases
of the project. The most likely sources of disturbance in this regard are likely to be
noise and dust emissions from construction and demolition activities and other
activities such as construction traffic movements. In the case of these proposals
there is also the added matter that the existing school facility needs to remain
operational throughout the development works.

5.34. The applicant has provided a Construction Management Plan as part of the
application. The Management Plan details measures such as construction working
hours and the management of movements to and from the site occurring outside of
any school drop off or pick up times. Deliveries to the site will also be booked.

5.35. The Construction Management Plan envisages the development occurring
over 4 phases. Phase 1 covers the securing of the of the site, segregation of the
existing operational school and the construction site. Phase 1 also includes
construction of the new school. Phase 2 comprises of the demolition of the existing
school building with Phases 3 and 4 comprising of completion of the car park and
landscaping. Following clarification from the applicant that the construction phase
does not necessitate any piling works Public Protection have confirmed that the
submitted CEMP and the measures outlined within are adhered to then suitable
protections would be provided to safeguard the amenity of the area during the
construction phase. To ensure that this remains the case it is necessary to condition
that works are carried out in accordance with the submitted CEMP.

5.36. Given the nature of the site there will be a requirement for some external

lighting, primarily in the interests of safety and security. The applicant has provided

a lighting plan. This shows that in some locations there will be light spill and lighting

levels at some boundary locations will be 3 lux. However, such impacts will be

mitigated by the existing vegetation at the site. As such Public Protection have
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 75

confirmed no objections to the proposed lighting nor have, they requested conditions
for further details.

5.37. Paragraph 112(e) of the NPPF requires developments to be designed to
‘enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, accessible
and convenient locations. Additionally, the City of York Council draft Low Emission
Planning Guidance requires a minimum of 5% of all parking spaces to be provided
with EV charge points. As part of the proposals 2.no designated EV charging spaces
are shown. This provision would achieve the 5% minimum requirement. No details
of the precise type of EV charge units to be installed at the site have been provided.
However, any such installation would be subject to compliance with the relevant
Building Regulations. Public Protection have recommended a condition which would
require the submission of a strategy for EV charging facilities. However, it is not
considered necessary to condition this level of detail in this instance. The provision
shown on the plan would achieve the required 5% threshold of all parking provision
at the site. Such facilities will have to comply with Building Regulations irrespective
of the condition securing a charging strategy. Furthermore, access to the facilities
given the use of the site as a school means they are unlikely to be publicly
accessible. As such it is considered appropriate to only condition that the EV charge
points as shown the proposed plans are provided within 6 months of the practical
completion of development. This will still secure compliance with NPPF Para 112
and the Council’s Low Emissions strategy.

5.38. With regard to land contamination the application is supported by a Phase 1
and Phase 2 contaminated land assessment. These have demonstrated that no
remediation measures are required at the site and in terms of land contamination
the site is suitable for the proposed use and development. Whilst the overall risk of
land contamination or encountering contaminated land during development would
be low; particularly given the existing established use of the site. It is considered
appropriate to attach a condition which, if contaminated land is encountered during
the development, suitable mechanisms can be secured for the reporting and
remediating of any contaminated land.

5.39. A ventilation and extraction assessment has been provided as part of the
application. Public Protection have confirmed that they have no further comments to
make in terms of odour control subject to the measures recommended within the
submitted report being implemented in full. These measures relate to the provision
of mechanical ventilation and extraction systems to serve the school kitchen. These
requirements form part of the wider Department for Education (“DfE”) specification
that the development must be designed and built to. As such it is not considered
necessary to reinforce this provision by way of planning condition. In any event

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 76

should issues of odour from the school kitchen arise the Council would retain
powers under its Public Protection function to deal with such issues.

5.40. Overall, whilst it is acknowledged that there will be a degree of disruption to
the immediate area, particularly during the construction phase. This disruption would
be relatively short within the context of the anticipated lifespan of the development.
However, it is considered that this disruption can be adequately and suitably
mitigated and managed to not give rise to significant or sustained disruption. Nor is it
considered that once completed the resulting development would present notable
public protection concerns. The proposals would therefore be considered to accord
with Policies ENV1, ENV2 and ENV3 of the DLP 2018.

Community Use, Facilities and Playing Fields

5.41. At present the existing school benefits from a large amount of outdoor open
space. This comprises of areas of landscaping, hardstanding, play areas and
grassed pitches/playing fields. The proposed development would see most of these
existing features retained albeit in slightly different locations or formats. Given the
proposed layout of the development and the need to phase development there will,
during the construction phase be a period of time whereby a portion of the existing
playing fields at the rear of the existing school would be lost. However, the
proposals would see a replacement pitch/playing field being provided to the front of
the proposed building.

5.42. Policy EDS8 of the DLP 2018 promotes the use and provision of community
access to Sports and Cultural Facilities on Education sites. Policy ED8 expects that
the community use of new facilities should be incorporated into the design in a
manner that optimises their potential use. This approach is also advocated within
the DfE School Specific Brief. This requires facilities or areas which could be utilised
for community use after hours such as, school halls/studios should be grouped
together and partitioned. Features such as separate entrances and proximity to
entrances should be considered for operational efficiency and security.

5.43. The proposed layout of the ground floor would see the two hall spaces
grouped together at one end of the building with a direct route from the main exterior
entrance or via the external access points to each of the halls. This would provide
the ability for these facilities to be utilised out of hours and also be partitioned off
from the rest of the school building.

5.44. Policy GI5 of the DLP 2018 is intended to protect existing open space and
playing fields. It states that development will not be permitted which would harm the
character of or lead to the loss of, open space of environmental and/or recreational
Importance unless the open space uses can be satisfactorily replaced.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 77

5.45. Paragraph 99 of the NPPF requires that existing open space, sports pitches
and recreational buildings and land, including playing fields should not be built on
unless:

- An assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open
space, buildings, or land to be surplus to requirements; or

- The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or

- The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the
benefits of which would clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.

5.46. The proposals would result in the in the loss of some of the existing playing
pitches. As a result of this Sport England have been consulted on the proposals.
Following assessment of the proposals in conjunction with the Football Foundation
acting as their technical advisers, Sport England have confirmed that they have no
objections to the proposals. They note that the existing multi use games area will be
unaffected by the proposal. It is therefore only the playing field that would be
impacted upon. The playing field lost to the development would be replaced by a
new area of playing field on the site of the existing school buildings. The area of
retained playing fields to the south of the existing buildings will of sufficient size to
accommodate a pitch that meets Football Association design guidance. The new
playing field area to the front of the new school building would not be of sufficient
size to accommodate a mini-soccer Under 7 and Under 8 pitch with safety run off
area. However, it would be capable of accommodating sports such as athletics and
rounders.

5.47. Overall, Sport England have confirmed that they are satisfied that that the
proposal would not have a negative impact upon on the ability of the school to
support a range of different pitch sports as a result of the proposals. In confirming
they have no objections to the proposals Sport England have requested, that in the
event of planning permission being granted, a series of conditions be imposed.

5.48. The first condition would, based on the results of the findings within the
submitted agronomy report, require a detailed scheme which would ensure that the
replacement playing field would be provided to an acceptable quality.

5.49. They have also recommended a second condition which requires the
submission of a Community Use Scheme to the LPA for approval in consultation
with Sport England. This condition would ensure that secure well managed safe
community access is provided to the sports facilities.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 78

5.50. As part of their submission the applicant has submitted document outlining the
draft principles of community use for the development. This outlines the principles
under which parts of the development could be made available for community use.
Any community use would be out of hours and managed in a manner so as such
uses would not be detrimental to the primary function of the site as a school. The
areas of the development which could be available for community use are the two
halls and kitchen space and the North and South playing fields and 3.no playing
courts. Any community use would be chargeable so as to allow the school to
recover all costs such as operation, caretaking, heating, lighting and maintaining the
facilities. The principles set out within the draft principles document demonstrates
that community use of the facilities could be secured and that suitable management
practices could be employed to deliver this. Notwithstanding this and in light of the
comments received by Sport England it is considered necessary to condition that a
scheme of community use be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA in
conjunction with Sport England.

5.51. Whilst the proposals would lead to the loss of some of the existing sports
pitches at the school the proposals would ultimately see a net gain in sports pitch
provision at the school once the development is completed. Additionally, the design
of the proposals is such, as is required by the DfE specification, that elements of the
proposals could be made available for community use; whilst ensuring the none
community use are kept secure. Overall, it is considered that subject to the
suggested conditions from Sport England the proposed development would accord
with Policies ED8 and GI5 of the DLP 2018.

Drainage and Flood Risk

5.52. Much of the application site including the existing school building and the
location of the proposed replacement school building is located within Flood Zone 1
(Low Risk). There is a small portion of the application site towards the south eastern
boundary that is located within Flood Zone 3 (High Risk) and this is due to the
location of Tang Hall Beck which runs to the south of the site. However, it should be
noted that this watercourse is 0.45m lower than the lowest level of the sports pitch.

5.53. Paragraph 167 of the NPPF requires that when determining any planning
applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased
elsewhere. Paragraph 169 goes on to state that Major development should
incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this
would be inappropriate.

5.54. Policy ENV4 of the DLP 2018 seeks to ensure that new development is not
subject to unacceptable levels of flood risk and shall be designed and constructed in
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 79

such a way that mitigates against current and future flood risk. Policy ENV5 of the
DLP 2018 promotes the use of sustainable drainage within development. Utilising
measures such as restricting run off rate and promoting the use of Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS).

5.55. With regard to surface water drainage infiltration tests have been conducted at
the site and were witnessed by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). However,
this approach has been discounted due to the presence of clay in the ground.
Surveys of the site have established that there are existing surface water drainage
connections to Tang Hall Beck to the south of the site where there is already an
existing outfall structure. It is proposed that the development would utilise these.
With regard to foul drainage the existing school already benefits from such
connections demonstrating that there is infrastructure within the vicinity. The
proposals would see separate foul and surface water drainage systems devised.

5.56. As part of the assessment of the proposals the drainage details have been
reviewed by the Lead Local Flood Authority and the Internal Drainage Board.
Neither have raised objections to the proposals and have requested that in the event
of planning permission being granted this be subject to various conditions relating to
drainage. The conditions would require provision for separate foul water and surface
water drainage systems to be implemented. A condition securing full details of the
technical drainage solution is also requested. Additionally, the Internal Drainage
Board have requested a condition which would ensure that a 9m strip is maintained
from the watercourse. This would secure sufficient space to the Internal Drainage
Board to facilitate maintenance access to the watercourse.

5.57. Overall, it is considered that the proposals would not give rise to increased
levels of flood risk or materially increase the overall flood vulnerability of the site. It is
considered that there would be viable technical solutions available which would
achieve suitable drainage provision. The requested conditions are considered
appropriate and will ensure that the required drainage infrastructure can be secured
to ensure that the development would accord with Policies ENV4 and ENV5 of the
DLP2018.

Ecology and Landscaping

5.58. The existing site currently benefits from large areas of landscaped grounds
comprising of a mixture of areas of hardstanding such as playgrounds and the areas
of soft landscaping comprising of the playing field areas. There are multiple trees of
varying scales and species across the site. The southern most area of the site
includes a wooded area adjacent to the beck this space also includes a woodland
teaching space. None of the existing trees on the site are subject to Tree
Preservation Orders.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 80

5.59. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. This includes
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including establishing
coherent ecological networks.

5.60. Policy GI2 of the DLP 2018 seeks to ensure that development seeks to
conserve and enhance York's biodiversity. Amongst other things Policy GI2 requires
development to ensure the retention, enhancement and appropriate management of
features of geological, or biological interest and further the aims of the current
Biodiversity Audit and Local Action Plan. Policy Gl4 states that development will be
supported where, amongst others, development recognises the value of existing
tree cover and hedgerows, their biodiversity value and the contribution they make to
the quality of the development.

5.61. Policy D2 of the DLP 2018 seeks to ensure development conserves and
enhances landscape quality and character and that development includes
sustainable, practical, and high quality soft and hard landscaping details and
planting proposals.

5.62. The application has been submitted with an Arboricultural Impact Assessment.
This has categorised each tree on site (A, B, C and U). The report has assessed a
total of 78.no trees, 11.no Tree Groups and 4.no hedgerows. Of these 4.no
Category U trees are to be removed for the purposes of good tree management.
These specimens are either entirely dead or in a condition whereby there removal is
justified. In total 30.no individual trees which are a mix of category B and C (poor to
moderate quality) trees are proposed to be removed across the site. A further 3.no
group trees are also proposed for removal. A the proposals will incorporate 47.no
replacement trees which over time will establish themselves and provide
compensatory planting on site.

5.63. The loss of these trees is to facilitate the comprehensive redevelopment of the
site. These trees either need to be removed as they are located where the elements
of the new development are to be sited or in a small number of cases removed to
facilitate safe and appropriate construction access; whilst being mindful that during
the construction phase the existing school needs to remain operational.

5.64. As a result of the development a significant proportion of the site will remain

undeveloped. There is therefore the opportunity for a comprehensive landscaping

scheme to be delivered. This will result in the provision of 47.no new trees across

the site which over time will establish themselves and provide suitable replacements

for those which are being removed to facilitate development. In the event of
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 81

development proceeding the trees that are to be retained on the site can be
adequately protected so as to safeguard them from development; it would be
necessary to condition that the development proceeds in accordance with the
submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment and that tree protection measures are
implemented prior to the construction commencing on the site.

5.65. The development will also incorporate replacement landscaping. In addition to
this a replacement playing pitch is to be provided to the front of the new school
building which will contribute to the overall green space and greening of the site.
Securing this replacement pitch is achieved via the conditions requested by Sport
England. The submitted site plan shows a replacement landscaping scheme. The
submitted details would secure a suitable level of landscaping within the site.
However, to ensure that the landscaping is provided an adequate opportunity to
establish itself and make a meaningful contribution to the overall setting of the
completed development it is considered necessary to secure the landscaping
scheme via condition.

5.66. Amongst the comments that have been received from interested third parties’
concerns have been raised regarding what is believed to be the loss of the some of
the existing trees on site. Clarification on this matter has been received from the
applicant which confirms that there has recently been works to an existing hedgerow
along the North West boundary with Whitby Avenue. However, these works have
been limited to pruning and resulted in the hedge being reduced in height to a
similar level to the boundary fence, giving the appearance of its complete removal.

5.67. The application is supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA).
With regard to protected and notable species at the site the PEA has identified there
are records of Bats within the area. Whilst none were identified during survey work
the existing school building is considered to provide roosting potential. The survey
area has also recorded instances of Water Vole and Otter however this is likely due
to the proximity to Tang Hall Beck. The site itself is not considered to provide a
suitable habitat for these species as the school grounds are intensively managed.

5.68. In reviewing the proposals the Council’s ecologist has confirmed that they
have no objections to the proposals. However, in the event of granting planning
permission it would be necessary to secure a number of measures via condition.
The works will require the developer to obtain a licence for Natural England or for
the site to be registered on a Bat Mitigation Class Licence or a statement from the
relevant licencing body that a licence would not be required. This condition will
ensure that the development proceeds whilst ensuring suitable protections are
secured to protect Bats.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 82

5.69. Under the Environment Act 2021, all planning permissions granted in England
(with a some exemptions) except for small sites will have to deliver at least 10%
biodiversity net gain from January 2024. Whilst Biodiversity Net Gain requirements
have not yet come into force the applicant has completed a Biodiversity Metric
Assessment. This demonstrates that the development would achieve a net gain at
the site. Although it does acknowledge that the gain would be marginally short of the
10% (8.8%) net gain in habitat biodiversity. The submitted metric assessment
concludes that a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) should be
produced, this should set out appropriate establishment works and management
measures. The Council Ecologist concurs with this and has recommended that the
LEMP be secured by condition. It has also been confirmed that the submitted
lighting plan is acceptable and takes account of the findings within the ecological
surveys.

5.70. It is considered that subject to the recommended conditions the proposed
development would be capable of delivering ecological and landscape
enhancements to the site and its surroundings. It would also be possible for the
development to proceed in a manner that would ensure that protected and notable
species that are present within and around the site are afforded suitable protections.

Sustainable Design and Construction

5.71. Policy CC1 of the DLP 2018 seeks to promote the use of renewable and low
carbon energy generation and storage within development. Policy CC1 will
encourage the use of renewable and low carbon energy within developments. This
will be subject to the scheme considering amongst other things the impacts on
York’s historic character, residential amenity and heritage and nature conservation
sites.

5.72. Policy CC2 of the DLP 2018 seeks to promote sustainable design and
construction within new development. The Policy seeks to secure energy and
carbon dioxide savings. In the case of non-residential buildings with total floor areas
exceeding 100 sg metres development would be expected to achieve BREEAM
‘Excellent’ or equivalent.

5.73. As part of the project the DfE have conducted assessments into the potential
to refurbish the existing facilities. This approach is part of their standard procedures
in assessing best value. The condition and age of the existing buildings weighed
significantly against refurbishment. Furthermore, whilst the existing has more
floorspace than the proposed the floorspace is not distributed in a manner which
prioritises pupils. Classrooms are over and under sized with poor access to natural
light, thermal efficiency is poor and there is an excessive amount of storage.
Refurbishment would also not achieve the high sustainability targets set by the DfE
Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 83

in terms of carbon reduction, landscape ecology and urban greening. Several of the
existing buildings on site date from 1960s and have surpassed their functional life.
The cost of retrofitting would exceed the new build costs and deliver a worse
performing building. Therefore, complete demolition and rebuild has been assessed
as delivering greater educational, landscape, ecological and sustainability benefits
for the site.

5.74. The design specification and sustainability measures to be employed in the
development have been informed by the requirements of the DfE. These include:

- Enhancements to urban greening from 0.34 to 0.38

- Delivery of a Net Zero Carbon in Operation Development
- Construction of bio-solar green roof

- Deliver SuDs enhancements

- Provision of Electric Vehicle charge points

- Deliver Biodiversity Net Gain.

5.75. As part of the application of the applicant has provided a sustainability
statement. This has appraised a series of low carbon and renewable energy
technologies and their suitability for use within the proposed development. Given
that the proposed development is a new build project this provides a greater number
of opportunities to design in energy efficiency measures into the development. This
approach is typically more effective as the measures can be incorporated into the
scheme from the ground up.

5.76. Policy CC2 of the DLP 2018 requires new non-residential development to
achieve a 28% reduction in carbon emissions over and above the requirements of
the 2013 Building Regulations and a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ (or equivalent) where
feasible and viable. In this instance rather than seeking to achieve BREEAM
‘Excellent’ the sustainability standards prescribed by the DfE as part of their funding
for the project are being worked to. The standard known as Output Specification 21
requires new school development to be net zero carbon in operation and promotes
other sustainability measures to be embedded into the design.

5.77. The proposed development has utilised a fabric first approach to sustainability.
Passive design features such as thermal insultation, natural ventilation, air tightness,
solar shading, low energy fit out and sub metering are utilised. These measures
promote a reduction in energy use in areas such as electricity usage, water usage
and heating. The next stage is to then meet demand efficiently. This involves
utilising technologies such as ventilation and heat recovery and other management
measures such as demand operated systems (e.g., motion-controlled lights),

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 84

variable speed drives and controls on fans and pumps, LED lighting and Building
Management Systems.

5.78. The proposed development will utilise a bio-solar roof on the upper roof
structure. This will comprise of approximately 600 sq metres of PV panels
(approximately 238 panels). The remainder of the roof surface will be planted out
with a green roof. Heating is be provided by air source heat pumps.

5.79. Cumulatively the lean, green and clean design approach will result in a 240%
reduction in carbon emissions from the target rate. This would far exceed the
requirements as set out within Policy CC2. The DfE requirement to achieve Output
Specification 21 requiring new school development to be net zero carbon in
operation would be, in this case, considered to be a suitable alternative to the Policy
CC2 requirement of BREEAM Excellent.

5.80. As part of the assessment of the application the Carbon Reduction team have
reviewed the measures proposed and have recommended that in the event of
planning permission being granted conditions should be attached to secure the level
of carbon reduction as specified within Policy CC2. However, in this case it is not
considered necessary or appropriate to impose these conditions. Since the drafting
of Policy CC2 the requirements of Building Regulations have surpassed the policy
requirements of CC2. Any condition could only secure a level of carbon reduction
that is lower than the Building Regulations require. In any event the DfE
requirements of net zero carbon in operation would surpass both the Policy
requirement of CC2 and Building Regulations; with this being achieved by virtue of
the design approach utilised and the ability to incorporate measures into the building
from the start.

5.81. Overall, the proposed development would utilise measures which would
achieve a reduction in carbon emissions over and the above the target emissions
rate far in excess of the levels required by Policy CC2.

Phasing of Development

5.82. The proposed development will need to be phased so as to allow the school to
remain operational. As part of the information submitted the applicant has provided
an indicative phasing plan which shows the sequencing of the development. Phase
1 will comprise of building the new school building, it has been indicated that this will
last 52 weeks. Once the new school is built staff and pupils will be transferred from
the existing facility. Phase 2 will then comprise of demolition of the existing school
the demolition phase is indicated as lasting 27 weeks. Phases 3 and 4 comprise of

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 85

completing the car park is scheduled to last two weeks being undertaken during the
2025 Summer Holidays.

5.83. Given the intended phasing of development there will be a period of time
where two school buildings exist side by side on the site until the demolition is
completed. Whilst the overall risk two buildings being left on the site to co-exist on a
permanent basis would be low. It is considered necessary to impose a condition
which secure a phasing plan of the development. This will allow the Local Planning
Authority to retain effective control over the development and mitigate the risk
associated with two buildings existing on the site.

Public Sector Equalities Duty

5.84 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 contains the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED) which requires public authorities, when exercising their functions, to have
due regard to the need to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

5.85 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

5.86 The PSED does not specify a particular substantive outcome, but ensures that
the decision made has been taken with “due regard” to its equality implications.

5.87 Officers have given due regard to the equality implications of the proposals in
making its recommendation. There is no indication or evidence (including from
consultation on this application) that any equality matters are raised that would
outweigh the material planning considerations.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 86

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1. Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide a
modern and up to date school environment which adheres to current standards and
practices. This would be the benefit of the immediate community and the pupils
which attend the school. The development will give rise to some impacts which
could adversely affect the immediate vicinity of the site. However, these would be
limited to the construction phase of the development which, in the context of the
overall expected lifespan of the development would be relatively small.

6.2. The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and
subject to the various conditions outlined below can be delivered in a suitably
controlled and managed manner so as to minimise undue impacts as far as
possible. The proposals accord with the provisions of the NPPF and policies
contained with the City of York Draft Local Plan 2018. Approval is therefore
recommended.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Location Plan: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-XX-00-D-A-0300;

Demolition Plan: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-XX-00-D-A-0305;

Whole Site Plan: Drawing No. SRP1062-PLI-ZZ-XX-D-L-1501 Rev PO5;

Elevations Proposed: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-AA-XX-D-A-0130 Rev PO03;
Section Proposed: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-AA-XX-D-A-0140 Rev P02;
Ground Floor Plan - Proposed: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-AA-00-D-A-0120 Rev
PO2;

First Floor Pan - Proposed: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-AA-01-D-A-0121 Rev P02;
RF Roof Plan - Proposed: Drawing No. SRP1062-WBA-AA-RF-D-A-0122 Rev P02;
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement: Document
Reference: DS05102101;

Construction Ecological Management Plan: Document Reference RT-MME-160543-
03

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority (“LPA”).

3  No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of foul
and surface water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off site

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 87

works and future management and maintenance, have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that suitable drainage infrastructure can be secured, and the
development can be adequately drained to mitigate flood risk.

4  The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and
surface water on and off site.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage.

5 A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to,
and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development. The content of the LEMP shall include, but not
be limited to:

- A framework for the monitoring of ecological features, target condition and
remedial measures.

- Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.

- Aims and objectives of management.

- Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.

- Prescriptions for management actions.

- Actions to be taken for the control and removal of invasive, non-native plant
species, if identified.

- Preparation of a work schedule.

- Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan.

- Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

- Details of the legal and funding mechanisms in place to secure long term
monitoring and management for a period not less than 30 years.

Establish BNG monitoring and reporting programme. As a minimum, the monitoring
programme should include:

Confirmation of the number of Biodiversity Units present based on a survey at an
appropriate time of year and how this compares to the target units.

Where target conditions for units are not yet met, the provision of an assessment of
time to target condition for each habitat and any changes to management that are
required.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 (d) of the NPPF (2023) to
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts
on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including establishing coherent
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures. To
ensure wildlife mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures are managed

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 88

and maintained appropriately.

6  All required demolition works to the main school building shall not under any
circumstances commence unless the local planning authority has been provided
with either:

a) a licence issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53 of The
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) authorising
the specified activity/development to go ahead; or

b) Confirmation that the site is registered on a Bat Mitigation Class licence (formally
Low Impact Class Licence) issued by Natural England; or

c) a statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not
consider that the specified activity/development will require a licence.

Reason: To ensure bats are protected from harm during the proposed works. All
British bat species and their roosts are protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended), and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (as amended).

7  Prior to the commencement of any demolition or building works on site all
trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with the submitted
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement (Document
Reference DS05102101) as received by the Local Planning Authority on 5" October
2023.

Reason: Reason: To ensure every effort and reasonable duty of care is exercised
during the development process in the interests of protecting the existing trees
shown to be retained which are considered to make a contribution to the public
amenity and/or the amenity and setting of the development.

8  The approved landscaping scheme, as shown on drawing Whole Site Plan
(Drawing No. SRP1062-PLI-ZZ-XX-D-L-1501 Rev P05) shall be implemented no
later than 6 months of the practical completion of the of the development. Any trees
or plants which within 5 years of planting die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and good design and to afford suitable time for
the landscaping scheme to establish itself in the development.

9  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the following
external materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 89

Local Planning Authority prior to their use in the development:

External Brick Work
Aluminium Cladding and flashings

The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices sample materials should be
made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in your approval of
details application when the materials will be available for inspection and where they
are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

10  Notwithstanding the details submitted as part of the application. Prior to the
development being brought into use, a Community Use Scheme shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, after consultation with
Sport England. The Scheme shall include details of pricing policy, hours of use,
access by non-school users/non-members, management responsibilities and
include a mechanism for review. The approved Scheme shall be implemented upon
commencement of use of the development.

Reason: To secure well managed safe community access to the sports facility, to
ensure sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to accord with Policy ED8
of the City of York Draft Local Plan (2018).

Informative: A model Community Use Scheme is available on the Sport England
website www.sportengland.org

11 The design of the new playing field indicated on drawing number SRP1062-
PLI-ZZ-XX-D-L-1501 Rev P05 shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations Chapter 4 as set out in STRI Agronomy Report ref JO06580 dated
15/08/2023.

No development shall commence on the existing school playing field until the
following documents have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, after consultation with Sport England:

A detailed scheme which ensures that the playing field will be provided to an
acceptable quality. The scheme shall include a written specification of soils
structure, proposed drainage, cultivation and other operations associated with grass
and sports turf establishment and a programme of implementation.

The approved scheme shall be carried out in full before the new playing field is
brought into use. The land shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 90

scheme and made available for playing field use in accordance with the scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the playing field is prepared to an adequate standard and is
fit for purpose and to accord with Policy GI5 of the City of York Draft Local Plan
(2018).

Informative: The applicant is advised that the scheme should comply with the
relevant industry Technical Guidance, including guidance published by Sport
England, National Governing Bodies for Sport. Particular attention is drawn to
‘Natural Turf for Sport', (Sport England, 2011)

12  No new buildings, structures, walls, fencing and planting shall be constructed
within 9 metres of the top of the embankment of the watercourse known as Tang
Hall Beck (which is maintained by Foss (2008) Internal Drainage Board under the
Land Drainage Act 1991 at this location) unless agreed otherwise in writing with the
Drainage Board.

Reason: To maintain access to the watercourse for maintenance or improvements.

13 The development shall be carried out with full adherence to the submitted
Construction Ecological Management Plan (Report Number: RT-MME-160543-03)
as received by the Local Planning Authority on 2nd August 2023.

Reason: To ensure that the development proceeds in a controlled and managed
manner so as to protect the ecological environment during the construction phase.

14  Prior to the development being brought into first use details of the cycle
parking areas, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be occupied until the
cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided within the site in
accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be used for any
purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

15 HWAY19 Car and cycle parking laid out

16  Notwithstanding the submitted details. A detailed method of works statement
identifying the programming and management of site clearance/preparatory and
construction works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the development commencing. The statement shall
include at least the following information:

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 91

a) Phasing of works, detailing access for school deliveries, access and turning of
vehicles within compounds, where materials will be stored.

b) Vehicle parking arrangements for school staff, site operatives and visitors
including visitors to the school.

c) Means of access control, and measures to prevent construction/delivery vehicles
parking/blocking the highway including details of laybys for stacking of vehicles.

d) Details of routing for contractors and deliveries to site utilising classified roads or
existing bus routes.

e) Details of how the route will be promoted including details of signage.

f) Details of Temporary Traffic Regulation orders required to facilitate large vehicles
on the network to access the site safely.

g) Measures to avoid damage to existing highway such as overrun of the footway/
verges and associated infrastructure such as utilities and signs on the highway.

h) Details of measures to keep the highway clean - wheel washing facilities for the
cleaning of wheels of vehicles leaving the site, including location and type.

1) Dilapidation survey - Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the
highways adjoining the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the
results of which shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Contact:
development.adoption@york.gov.uk to arrange

j) Delivery times - During construction, deliveries and access for construction
vehicles and contractors in or out of the site on school days shall be prohibited
between the hours of 08:15 - 09:15 and 15:00 - 16:00.

k) Details of the hours of construction and measures to minimise the creation of
noise, vibration and dust during the demolition.

Reason: To ensure that the development can be carried out in a manner that will not
be to the detriment of amenity of local residents, free flow of traffic or safety of
highway users.

17  The provision of dedicated Electric Vehicle (EV) charging facilities as shown
on drawing Whole Site Plan (Drawing No. SRP1062-PLI-ZZ-XX-D-L-1501 Rev P05)
shall be implemented no later than 6 months of the practical completion of
development.

Reason: To ensure the provision of EV charging facilities in line with the Councils
Low Emissions Strategy and Paragraph 112 of the NPPF.

18 The development shall be carried out in full adherence to the
Ventilation/Extract Statement (Document Reference SRP1062-RDG-AA-ZZ-T-M-
0012) as received by the Local Planning Authority on 2nd August 2023.

Reason: To ensure that adequate measures are secured to properly manage and
control odour emissions from the site during its operation.

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 92

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

Reviewed technical feedback from consultees to refine the proposals and address
the concerns raised.

2. a) The public sewer network does not have capacity to accept an unrestricted
discharge of surface water. Surface water discharge to the existing public sewer
network must only be as a last resort, the developer is required to eliminate other
means of surface water disposal. - the applicant has eliminated infiltration methods
and a connection to the watercourse is proposed,

b) The applicant should be advised that the Yorkshire Waters prior consent is
required to make a connection of foul and surface water to the public sewer network,
and

c) The applicant should be advised that the York Consortium of Drainage Board's
prior consent is required (outside and as well as planning permission) for any
development including fences or planting within 9.00m of the bank top of any
watercourse within or forming the boundary of the site. Any proposals to culvert,
bridge, fill in or make a discharge (either directly or indirectly) to the watercourse will
also require the Board's prior consent.

3. Surface water drainage design requirements

If SuDS methods can be proven to be unsuitable then In accordance with City of
York Councils City of York Councils Sustainable Drainage Systems Guidance for
Developers (August 2018) and in agreement with the Environment Agency and the
York Consortium of Internal Drainage Boards, peak run-off from Brownfield
developments must be attenuated to 70% of the existing rate (based on 140 I/s/ha of
proven by way of CCTV drainage survey connected impermeable areas during the 1
in 1 year event). Storage volume calculations, using computer modelling, must
accommodate a 1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along with no internal
flooding of buildings or surface runoff from the site in a 1:100-year storm. Proposed
areas within the model must also include an additional 30% allowance for climate
change. The modelling must use a range of storm durations, with both summer and

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



Page 93

winter profiles, to find the worst-case volume required. Please note, the CCTV
drainage survey must be carried out prior to determination of the application and all
hard paved areas should not be assumed to connect. Where making use of an
existing piped connection an assessment of its capacity shall be carried out and the
70% applied to this whichever is the lower rate.

If existing connected impermeable areas not proven, then Greenfield sites are to
limit the discharge rate to the predeveloped run off rate. The predevelopment run off
rate should be calculated using either IOH 124 or FEH methods (depending on
catchment size) during a 1 in 1 year event.

Where calculated runoff rates are not available the widely used 1.4l/s/ha rate can be
used as a proxy, however, if the developer can demonstrate that the existing site
discharges more than 1.4l/s/ha a higher existing runoff rate may be agreed and
used as the discharge limit for the proposed development. If discharge to public
sewer is required, and all alternatives have been discounted, the receiving public
sewer may not have adequate capacity and it is recommend discussing discharge
rate with Yorkshire Water Services Ltd at an early stage.

In some instances, design flows from minor developments may be so small that the
restriction of flows may be difficult to achieve. However, through careful selection of
source control or SuDS techniques it should be possible to manage or restrict flows
from the site to a minimum 0.5 I/sec for individual residential properties, please
discuss any design issues with the City of York Council Flood Risk Management
Team.

Surface water shall not be connected to any foul / combined sewer, if a suitable
watercourse/surface water sewer is available. Suitability of the watercourse/surface
water sewer must be proven.

The applicant should provide a topographical survey showing the existing and
proposed ground and finished floor levels to ordnance datum for the site and
adjacent properties. The development should not be raised above the level of the
adjacent land, to prevent runoff from the site affecting nearby properties.

4. INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that this proposal may have an effect on Statutory Undertakers
equipment. You must contact all the utilities to ascertain the location of the
equipment and any requirements they might have prior to works commencing.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 23/01514/FULM Item No: 4b



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

Hempland Cp School, Whitby Avenue
23/01514/FULM

\

2 X@'&
\

L
o)
) . >

/ ecreation Groun
é: O.‘I.
.__J’
: W© e
N 0/78, Miotment Gardens
Y
[]
PaN
Scale : 1:2028
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Commen t
Date 27 October 2023

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on 9" November 2023

/6 abed



23/01514/FULM — Hempland School, Whitby
Avenue, York

Erection of two storey school building with associated parking, play
space and landscaping, and demolition of existing school buildings

CCCCCCC

86 9bed



Page 99 —

Pl
{ Hemplands Primary S
I
weA
\NATSON BATTY
ARCHITECTS

57

LNt
Pt LSS %
N G@LWM,_
CES

%,

Site Location Plan



Y= L
gHiemplandllane ¥igg “¥'#

PrAllotments

Hemglan"d -
Primary School o
S YN

Hannah's,House!
Childminding®

2 \

¥ ciTY oF Google Earth Aerial Image

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Existing Access from
Whitby Avenue

—

=y CITY OF

YORK i iwe il

connen City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Existing Buildings and
Main Entrance

g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

20T abed



Existing Buildings
viewed from South
of site

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Page 104

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

Two Storey
CITY OF
YORK
COUNCIL

Existing
Building




North West Boundary to
Whitby Avenue

=

= {
| AT

4—":-;-‘%‘ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Existing Playground and
boundary to Applegarth
Road Properties

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

10

90T 9bed



Existing South West
Pedestrian Access
Point

\
=g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023




Proposed
Demolition Plan

80T abed




Whole Site Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

_ i gt v aremarce accow.

N~
B - Py bk srfoce 10 sy years ply space and €52
it
[ pe—
Ry [e—
I\ - [ee————
B e
- s ot ey oo

[

@ ooy e
o armr e st
i sbisinet
P o

@ on o psron o s nuong

. e o ki o s 38 v 3 sl
P

Qi
@ o o i
S ey e e

@ ke e

[ R ———— @ = e s

it i
e — i i
e s g
[ R
[ Y ——— Cy—
e e /
© oo sy
Jogucy growirg bude.

" Y ——— @ e i oy
b ol

@ et /by et s

@ ‘e {7 /o i et mn o B e
B

e e e s bt et 4=

@ oot seunes wd wort e kg
Feacing o e ukd 5 the Sty

. Jonr coveres sal Cyce purkng aces (10 the
O et g e g

pt
@ Sicnmmenn i

@ sorvore e g

P g —

EEE——Ter e

i
=D
=

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

13

60T abed



Proposed Site Layout (Extract)

>

\ s
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

OTT 9bed



Proposed Vs Existing
Layout Comparison

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

City of

Site Red Line Boundary
Site Area=21900m2

Existing Buildings to be

s Pate s se womneo . v e o
€ FLIGKE AGEEPT 1O LABLITY PO ANY EXPESE L058 O DRMAGE OF WHATSCEVER
A HONEVER ARG N AT s SRAven G
e G THE HAK TO WCH T RELATES Whch KAS T

enco e
2 T8 CRAAG 15 TO B READ M COMINETION WITH ALL OTHER NAZAROS (.
v kv e AN RECOHRDED WITNN T

T abed

~ gar 3 ’
P —
B ermnemnesend,

[N
[N

— “ ;
~ 8 ~ :
EL%H—- Toowma [ ek | oare

®

1Sg

%) Hempland L
Primary School | Department
for Education

plincke,




—_—— - ——

_A-A North Elevation
1|
1:100

|
|

-
— [——

==l

LOOk

vy

South Elevation

2[5%

VISUAL SCALE 1:100

2 28
o . g2
E 2l 2
A3 A > H
2 y = =
28 2 bt H g
E| g M, mh 33 ig ¢
a5 W NKnmmmm.
B, 5 |BE Bl
a8 i g = §1° BY 2
BE s Ea %R il
2 &izE8 g 5 Z< diii |
™
AN
o
cn/._
Wm
A A
()
>
(@]
Z
£
(@]
N i :
s b P =2
IR
TR N I O A
SR T N T O B B R
RN RN
dEHBEF L B S
@@@@@@@@@@m@
| “ﬁw
L o
=
| e
| I C
s ®
g
=
s
b O
O
S
.5
“v.
B
\.1 W ..\_‘w
m O
[
I BN
I
| I
[
| I
[
! |
. g
Re= 18
g —— -
m | [ i}
um®|-|-|-w|-|m| e
i I
™M <

YORK




Proposed Ground Floor Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

P

00-041
Srine

DB 1

Infant 2
00-004

Ground Floor Proposed

1:100

SEN
00-00¢

o f
o
Infant Group
=
Infant WG 2
o

Hall Store.
00-018
S

LA

PR 15023 P PN Amesdments v akgn wes 2age 4 on
P OUA M PN Phoneg b

PL Planning
Hempland Primary School

Ground Floor Plan - Proposed
Whitby Ave

York

Y031 1ET

ISG

SRP1062-WBA-AA-00-D-A-0120 P02

o72023 o8 N 100 3Eson

\NATSON BATTY
ARCHITECTS

Shires House, Shires Road
Guiseley, Leeds 1520 BEL
Leeds | Loughborough
T: 01943 876 665
£ enquinc€@Wsonbatty.com
W: veww.vrdtsoylbatty.com
FUTURE




Proposed First Floor Plan

CITY OF

COUNCIL

— —_—

i3
DL?;%S

o )

Comidor
e

']

sy

i

n0

5 -

1 First Floor Proposed

1:100

PO IS M Amendments o ign wehape 4 desin
PO WD N M Pueglme

PL Planning
Hempland Primary School

yTT abed

First Floor Plan - Proposed
Whitby Ave

York

YO31 1ET

IsG

SRP1062-WBA-AA-01-D-A-0121

o72023 ] N 1100

\NATSON BATTY
ARCHITECTS

Shires House, Shires Road
Guiseley, Leeds 1520 BEU
Leeck | Loughborough

T: 01943 876 665

£ enquinediiisonbatty.com
W vww. ik sdoBatty.com

FUTURE

P02

smaon




Proposed Roof Plan

BIO SOLAR ROOF TO M+E DESIGN

Plant

one

tretowr

B

o

Roof Plan Proposed
1|
1:100

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

GTT obed

N deiments 3ign i e 4 desgn
N g e

L
Bl 22

PL Planning
Hempland Primary School

RF Roof Plan - Proposed
Whitby Ave

York

Y031 1ET

IsG

SRP1062-WBA-AA-RF-D-A-0122 P02
0772003 M e 100 smon

\NATSON BATTY
ARCHITECTS

Shires House, Shires Road
Guiseley, Leads 520 8EU
Leeds | Loughborough

T: 01943 876 665

E: enquinisp@pegtsonbatty.com
Wi v atty.com

FUTURE




Proposed Sections

|
| » P P —— P——
I ;
I = L} — 1
Corridor
‘ 8 Extmm l_ | 01031
‘ .. =
LO1p==3 ‘ o3 N
= < o - ' e - -
1 ]
! 1 Fall store 1 1
Servery 00018
‘ 00-015 STHoy 0
g
LOOp==. 2 -
Section 1

9TT abed

Section 2 Section 3

1:100 1:100

i i i mw g Hempland Primary School

Section Proposed

| | ] Whitby Ave
| ! York
Y031 1ET
IsG

SRP1062-WBA-AA-XX-D-A-0140 P02

o203 ™ PN psngited 3783011

\NATSON BATTY
ARCHITECTS

Section Key Plan 2‘:;.“,?“* Shies st
1:500

5 CITY OF

I o R K Section 4 T: 01943 876 665

COUNCIL 1o City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023 I -

FUTUREBUILT




(

Gate Office
Indicative Phase 1 Plan  Phase 1; Site Gates
Build New School
Week 1-52. e
- Segregated
1AW Pedestrian Route
- Q’

M Assembly Point

Safe Pedestrian
Route to Build Area

—
’.44

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

/mnmom
) BULDINGS TO BE DEMOLSHED

Y,

City of York Council Plagfiing Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023

21

/TT obed



Indicative Phase 2 Plan

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

r Fire Point
@ First Aid Point

\ | Phase 2;
. Demolition i) | Demolish Existing School
Week 58-85.

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 9th November 2023 22

8TT abed



Indicative Phase 4 Plan

4—‘!:‘% CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

r Fire Point
@ First Aid Point

Phase 3 & 4;
Complete Car Park
Week 86-88.
Summer Hols, 2025

23

6TT obed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a York Station, Station Road, York [23/01640/LBC]
	York Station, Station Road, York [23/01640/LBC] Plan
	York Station, Station Road, York [23/01640/LBC] Presentation
	Slide 1: Planning Committee A
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27


	4b Hempland Cp School, Whitby Avenue, York, YO31 1ET [23/01514/FULM]
	Hempland Cp School, Whitby Avenue, York, YO31 1ET [23/01514/FULM] Plan
	Hempland Cp School, Whitby Avenue, York, YO31 1ET [23/01514/FULM] Presentation
	Slide 1: Planning Committee A
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23



